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Honorable Digtrict Judges:

Gary Sanderson, Presiding Judge, 60th District Court
Charles Carver, Judge, Crimind Didrict Court
James Mehaffy, Judge, 58th District Court

Milton Shuffied, Judge, 136th Didtrict Court

Donad FHoyd, Judge, 172nd Didtrict Court

Leonard Giblin, Jr., 252nd District Court

Tom Mulvaney, Judge, 279th Didtrict Court

Larry Thorne, Judge, 317th Didtrict Court

Honorable Commissioners Court:

Cal Griffith, County Judge

Jmmie Cokinos, Commissioner, Precinct No. 1
Mark Domingue, Commissioner, Precinct No. 2
Waymon Halmark, Commissioner, Precinct No. 3
Ed Moore, Commissioner, Precinct No. 4

Gentlemen:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financia Report of Jefferson County, Texas
(ACountyf) for thefiscal year ended September 30, 2000. The primary purpose of thisreport isto provide
the Commissioners Court, citizens, financid community, and otherswith detailed information concerning the
financid condition and performance of the County.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

The Comprehensive Annud Financid Report (ACAFRY) of Jefferson County, Texaswas prepared by the
County Auditor's Office. These financid statements have been prepared in conformity with generdly
accepted accounting principles (AGAAP() asapplied to governmentd units. The Governmenta Accounting



Standards Board (AGA SB{) isthe accepted standard setting body for establishing governmenta accounting
and financia reporting principles. Responghility for both the accuracy of the presented data, and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including dl disclosures, restswith the County. Webdieve
the data, as presented, is accurate in al materia respects and is reported in amanner designed to present
fairly thefinancid position and results of operations of the County. All disclosures necessary to enablethe
reader to gain a reasonable understanding of the County's financid activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annua Financid Report ispresented in three sections: introductory, financial, and
statistical section. Theintroductory sectionincludesthistranamitta |etter, an organizationd chart, anda
list of eected and appointed officias. The financial section includes the generd-purpose financid

satements and rel ated notes, the combining and individua fundand account group financid statementsand
schedules, as well asthe independent auditor's report. The statistical section includes severd tables of
unaudited data depicting the financid history of the County as wel as demographic information of other
entities within the County.

The Reporting Entity

This report includes dl funds and account groups of the primary government (Jefferson County, Texas).
Also considered for inclusion were dl potentia component units. Component units are legaly separate
entities for which the primary government is financially accountable. Based on the criteria provided by
GASB Statement No. 14, none of the potentia component units were included as part of the financid

reporting entity.

General Information Regarding The County

The County was created in 1836 and organized in 1837 as one of the origina counties of the Republic of
Texas. The County islocated on the upper Texas Coast and isacomponent of the Beaumont-Port Arthur-
Orange Metropolitan Statistical Area. According to the U.S. Department of Commerce-Bureau of the
Census, the 1990 population of the County was 239,397.

The areais served by deep-water portslocated at Beaumont, Port Arthur, Orange and Sabine Pass. The
Sabine NechesWaterway provides deep-water accessto oceangoing vessdls, which are served by public
ports within the County.

The County istraversed by Interstate Highway 10, US Highways 90 and 69-96- 287, State Highways 73,
87 and 105 and three farm-to-market roads. Rail and motor freight carriersaso providefreight serviceto
the County. The Southeast Texas Regionad Airport located between Beaumont and Port Arthur provides
passenger and freight service and is currently serviced by two commuter passenger air carriers.

The County provides a full range of sarvices to its citizens. These services include maintenance and
congtruction of roads and bridges; judicia and law enforcement services, and hedlth and welfare services.



Economic Condition and Outlook

The economy of the County is based primarily on petroleum refining; the production and processing of
petrochemicas and other chemicals, the fabrication of sted and sted products; shipping activity; the
manufacture of wood, pulp, food and feed products; agriculture; and hedlth care services. The County
continuesto diversfy itseconomic base as evidenced by theincrease of jobsin the servicesand government
sectors.

Maijor Initiatives

The Commissioners Court set the property tax rate at $ .365 per $100 of assessed property vadudtion to
providefundsfor expanded services, and debt servicefor fisca year 2000. Budget initiativesfor fiscd year
2000:

L] Continued implementation of the Countywide employee classification and compensation
system. Commissioners Court authorized amarket survey be performed to ensurethat the
County was remaining competitiveinit’scompensation plan. Five hundred and Sixty-seven
(567) positions were andyzed by an independent compensation-consulting firm, Public
Sector, Inc. and adjusted to the prevailing market rate in the area.

L] Funding for a Countywide computer network to be maintained by the Management
Information Systems (M1S) department, which will ensure better communications and the
sharing of information between County employees.

L] Funding of 100% of the County’s Drug Impact Court beginning June 1, 2000, as the
federd government will no longer provide grant funds for this Court.

L] Funding ongoing and new capitd projectsincluding renovationsto Annex | and 11, frontage
roads on Interstate 10, land acquisition and planning expenses and Phase | of afour year
hanger rehabilitation project at the Southeast Texas Regiona Airport.

| Continuing to maintain the highest level of service to the taxpayers of the County.

Accounting Syssem and Budgetary Controls

The County's accounting records, with the exception of the Enterprise Fund and the Internal Service Funds
are maintained on the modified accrua basis whereby revenues are recognized when measurable and
available and expenditures are recognized when goods and services are received. The Enterprise and the
Interna Service Fund are accounted for using the accrud basis of accounting, under which transactionsare
recognized when they occur, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows.



The County maintains budgetary controlsin order to ensure compliance with legal provisons embodied in
the annua appropriated budget approved by the Commissioners Court. Theleve of budgetary control is
the department within the individua funds. The County maintains an encumbrance accounting sysem asa
method to accomplish budgetary control.

Each July, Commissioners Court conducts hearings with various department heads to establish priorities
and requests for the next fisca year. The budget processtypicaly lasts from May to September. By late
August, Commissioners Court will present a proposed budget to the citizensduring apublic hearing. The
budget is adopted no later than September 30.

The County Auditor monitors expenditures of the various departments to prevent expenditures from
exceeding budgeted appropriations.

Internal Controls

In developing and evauating the accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internd
accounting controls. Interna accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets againgt 1oss from unauthorized use or disposition; and
(2) the rdiability of financid records for preparing financid statements and maintaining accountability for
assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefitslikely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments

by management.

All interna control evauations occur within the above framework. We believe that the County's interna
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonabl e assurance of proper recording of
financia transactions.

General Financial | nformation

Governmentd funds are used to account for the mgority of the County's genera activities including the
collection and dishursement of restricted monies (specia revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of
generd fixed assets (capitd projects funds), the servicing of generd long-term debt (debt service funds),
and dl activities not accounted for in any other fund (general fund). For the year ended September 30,
2000, sources of funds totaled $151.2 million compared to totd uses of funds of $39.5 million. The fund
balance at year-end was $98.5 million. Thefollowing graphs provide sources of fundsand uses of fundshby
function for fisca year 1999-2000.



Sour ces of Funds

Other 0.8%
Fines & Forfeitures 2.2%
Sales, Rentals, & Services 3.1%
Interest 3.4%
Operating Transfers 4.9%

Bond Proceeds 35.6% Grants 5.5%

Fees 7.1%

Sales Taxes 9.2%

Property Taxes 28.2%

Uses of Funds by Function

Other 0.5%
Debt Service3.8%
Health & Welfare6.2%

Operating Transfers 7.5%

Capital Outlay 10.9%
Judicial & Law Enforcement 49.8% * ¥ 5

Maintenance9.6%

General Government 11.7%

The following schedule presents asummary of generd fund, specia revenue funds, capitd projects funds,
and debt service fund revenue and other financing sources and expenditures and other uses for the fisca
year ended September 30, 2000 and the amount and percent of increases and decreasesin relation to prior
year amounts.



Taxes:
Property
Sales Taxes
Fees
Licenses
Sales, Rentals, and Services
Intergovernmental
Fines and Forfeitures
Grants and Receipts - Other
Governments

Contributions and Donations

Capital Lease Proceeds

Operating Transfers In

Proceeds from Bond Sale
Total Sources

General Government
Judicial and Law Enforcement
Education and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Contract Services
Maintenance - Equipment and
Structures
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Commission
Operating Transfers Out
Total Uses
Increase (Decrease) in
Fund Balances
Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balances, October 1

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
Governmental Funds
Comparative Sources and Uses of Funds

$ 42,624,272 42,347,242 |$ 277,030 0.65%
13,860,790 13,502,676 | 358,114 2.65%
10,731,563 10,679,407 52,156 0.49%

487,024 450,865 36,159 8.02%
4,727,874 7,563,814 | (2,835,940) | (37.49%
640,984 707,981 (66,997) (9.46%
3,365,240 2,922,403 442,837 15.15%
8,378,371 8,408,841 (30,470) (0.36%
5,183,310 2,638,316 | 2,544,994 96.46%
13,792 21,229 (7,437) | (35.03%
15,705 13,034 2,671 20.49%

- 392,528 | (392,528) | (100.00%
7,412,713 5,794,077 | 1,618,636 27.94%
53,795,969 5,860,270 | 47,935,699 817.98%
151,237,607 | 101,302,683 |49,934,924 49.29%
11,626,757 10,378,142 | 1,248,615 12.03%
49,543,078 47,441,074 | 2,102,004 4.43%
516,098 513,718 2,380 0.46%
6,180,430 5,199,497 980,933 18.87%
9,684 39,053 (29,369) |  (75.20%
9,542,345 8,698,584 843,761 9.70%
10,881,982 6,594,022 | 4,287,960 65.03%
2,670,000 2,405,000 265,000 11.02%
1,112,364 1,067,213 45,151 4.23%
7,442,713 5,794,077 | 1,648,636 28.45%
99,525,451 88,130,380 | 11,395,071 12.93%
51,712,156 13,172,303 |38,539,853 292.58%
4,285 (16,495)| 20,780 | (125.98%
46,753,481 33,597,673 | 13,155,808 39.16%
98,469,922 46,753,481 |51,716,441 110.62%

The most significant changes in revenue were as follows:

VI



1

2)
3)
4)

5)

6)

Sdes, Rentals, and Services decreased by $2,835,940 or 37.49% due to the receipt of
$4,228,008 from the State of Texas in fiscd year 1999 and the County only received
$749,823 from the State of Texasin fiscal year 2000 for the County’s pro rata share of
Tobacco Settlement proceeds.

Finesand Forfeituresincreased by $442,837 or 15.15% asaresult of forfeitures generated
by the Sheriff’s office, Narcotics Task Force, and Didtrict Attorney office.

Interest increased by $2,544,994 or 96.46% as a result of proceeds of a $55,000,000
Certificates of Obligation bond collecting interest.

Capitd Lease Proceeds decreased by $392,528 or 100% dueto no new capita leasesin
fiscal year 2000.

Operating Transfers In increased by $1,618,636 or 27.94% as a result of funding
Courthouse Renovations and non-bond expenditures of the Southeast Texas Entertainment
Complex.

Proceeds from Bond Sale increased by $47,935,699 or 817.98% as a result of the
issuance of a$55,000,000 in Certificates of Obligation to finance the congtruction of athe
Southeast Texas Entertainment Complex.

The most sgnificant changes noted in expenditures were as follows:

1

2)

3)

4)

5)

Generd Government increased by $1,248,615 or 12.03% as a result of over dl salary
increases with the classification compensation system and cost of benefits provided to
employees.

Hedlth and Welfare increased by $980,933 or 18.87% as a result of increase indigent
heslth care cost and increased cost of chemicas used by Mosquito Control.

Capita Outlay increased by $4,287,960 or 65.03% as aresult of construction of anew
48 bed Juvenile Detention facility and congtruction of the Southeast Texas Entertainment
Complex.

Debt Service Principa increased by $265,000 or 11.02% as aresult of the payoff of
the 1990 Genera Obligation bond and the 1995 Tax Anticipation Note.

Operation Transfers Out increased by $1,648,636 or 28.45% as a result of funding
Courthouse Renovations and non-bond expenditures of the Southeast Texas
Entertainment Complex.

Capital Projects. The County maintainsan ongoing capital improvement program. Generd government

capitd improvements have been funded by genera obligation bond proceeds and are accounted for in the
Capital Projects Funds. When projectsare completed, they arerecorded as additionsin the Generd Fixed
Assets Account Group. Capital improvements for the Airport are considered Aproprietaryl and are
accounted for in the Airport Enterprise Fund.

The County expended atota of $7,191,638 in 1999-2000 for avariety of capita project improvements.
As of September 30, 2000, the ending fund balance reserved for capital projects was $67,296,877.

VII



Enterprise Operations. The County's enterprise endeavor is the operation of the Southeast Texas

Regiond Airport. A summary of

Operating Revenues
Operating Expenditures

Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenues

Net Loss

the operation is listed below.

1999-2000 1998-99
$ 2154500 $ 2,277,803
3,536,384 3,135,186
(1,381,884) (857,383)
5,117 22,854
(1,376,767) (834,529)

Debt Adminigtration. At September 30, 2000, the County had debt i ssues outstanding of $76,385,000.
Bond rating agencies, Moody's and Standard and Poor's rated the County's most recent bond issue "Aa"

and "A+" repectively.

$7,000,000 —
$6,000,000 —
$5,000,000 —
$4,000,000 —
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000

$0

[ Debt Service Requirements ]

(Next Five Years)

J$7,911,346

Y | Y s |
$6,277,183 ][ $6,274,926 || $6,266,901 |[ $6,263,813

! : ! - ! - ! - !
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Risk M anagement. The County has established threeinternd service funds (Hedth Insurance, Liability,

and Workers Compensation) to i

nsure itsdf againgt losses normaly covered by insurance. The Hedlth

Insurance Fund is used to accumulate employer and employee contributions, and pay hedlth, denta, and
prescription drug claims. Contributions and interest incometotaled $9,782,295 while expenditures totaled
$8,290,596. The purpose of the Liability Fund is to account for the transfers made to cover property
damage and persond liability dlaims. The Workers Compensation Fund was established to better manage
and monitor workers compensation clams.  Contributions from employer and interest on investments
totaled $582,812, while expenditures totaled $546,740.

Fiduciary Funds. are used to account for assets held on behaf of outsiders, including other governments,

or other funds within the County.

VIlI



Cash M anagement. The County earned interest revenue of $5,545,863 on dl investmentsincluding those
of the proprietary fundsfor thefisca year ended September 30, 2000. The County'sinvestment policy isto
minimize credit and market riskswhile maintaining acompetitiveyield onitsportfolio. Accordingly, deposits
were ether insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. All collatera on deposits was held
ather by afinancid inditution or its agent in the County's name.

Other Information

| ndependent Audit. An annua audit of the accounting records of the County is made by independent
certified public accountants. The accounting firm of Charles E. Reed & Associates, P.C., CPA-swas
selected by the County Commissionersto perform the current audit. The auditor's report on the genera-
purposefinancia statements and combining and individua fund statements and schedulesisincluded in the
financial section of this report.

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)

awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellencein Financid Reporting to Jefferson County, Texasfor
itscomprehensive annud financid report (CAFR) for thefiscal yearsended September 30, 1999. Thiswas
the third consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, agovernment unit must publish an easily readableand
efficiently organized comprehensveamnua financia report, whose contents conform to program standards.
The CAFR mugt satisfy both generaly accepted accounting principles and applicable legd requirements.

A Cettificate of Achievement isvdid for aperiod of oneyear only. Webelieve our current report continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to
determineits digibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
dedicated services of the saff of the County Auditor's Office. | expressmy sincere gppreciationto dl the
members of this office who contributed to its preparation. Also, | express my appreciation and thanksto
the members of the Commissioners Court, their saff, and al other County officidsand employeeswho have
given their support in planning and conducting the financia operations of Jefferson County, Texas in a
responsible manner.

Petrick Swain, C.P.A.
County Auditor
Jefferson County, Texas
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Association of the Unked States and Canada to
government units and public employee retiremment
systerns whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
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ORGANIZATION CHART OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
As of September 30, 2000

JEFFERSON COUNTY VOTERS ‘
|

[ \ \ ‘ |
Criminal Constables Commissioners Court County
District Tax Pct. 1 - Conn Judge - Griffith District Courtsat
Attorney Assessor Pct. 2 - Roccaforte Treasurer Pct. 1 - Cokinos Courts Law
Maness Collector Pct. 4 - Crowder Robinson Pct. 2 - Domingue
Johnson Pct. 6 - Stevenson Pct. 3 - Hallmark
Pct. 7 - Greenway Pct. 4 - Moore
County Pct. 8 - Collins \ | [ |
Clerk Justices Civil Criminal Criminal | Civil |
Walker Sheriff istri of the 58th - Mehaffy Criminal - Carver No. 2 - Plessala No. 1 - Gerson
Woods Peace 60th - Sanderson 252nd - Giblin No. 3 - Davis
Pct. 1 PI. 1 - Dollinger 136th - Shuffield T
Pct. 1 Pl. 2 - McGinnis 172nd - Floyd \
Jail Crime Pct. 2 - Morgan 317th - Thorne Community
Lab Pct. 4 - Chesson 279th - Mulvaney Supervision
Pct. 6 - Brown Morgan
Pct. 7 - Borne \
Pct. 8 - Bartie County
Auditor
Swain
Juvenile Purc)lasing
Board Board
Elected | \
Juvenile Purchasing
Probation Agent
and Brockschmidt
Detention |
Martin
Library Veterans Environmental Service Buildings ‘ Historical Emergency Records
Ciallella Services Control Center Maintenance Engineering ICommission Management M anagement
Office Melancon Fontenot Fuselier Pastrana Arceneaux Cascio Arceneaux
James
Court Health
Morgue Human Master Airport and
Brown Resour ces Agricultural Gist Broussard Welfare
Erickson Extension Walkes
Service Pre-Trial
Nurse Mannino Release
Data Practitioner Ortego Advisory
Processing Giordano Risk Dispute Board
Helegda M anagement Resolution \
Morgan Bloodsworth Fee Mosquito
N Collection Control
Claims Harper Chastant

Processing



ELECTED OFFICIALS
As of September 30, 2000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

To the Hoencrable Carl Graffith, County Judge
and Members of the Commissioners” Court
Tefferson County, Texas

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of Jefferson Counly,
Texas, (The “County™) as of September 30, 2060, and for the yvear then ended, as listed in the tahle
of contenls,  These general purpose fnancial statements are the respansibility of the County's
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpese financial
statements bazed on our andit

We conducted our audit in acecordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to linancial audits comained in Covernment Swdiving Standards, aned (0B
Cirewlar A-133, Audits of Siates, Local Governmenis, aed Wor-Frafiy Crpasizanons, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards and OMB-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the general purpose [inancial
statements are free of malerial misstatement. An audil includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supparting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting prineiples used and the significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasunable basis for our opinion,

I our epinion, the general purpuse financial statements relirred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the County as of September 30, 2000, and the results
of its operations and cash flows ol ils proprietary fund Lypes Tor the year then ended in conformily
with generally accepted accounting principles.

@ Financial Services - Chuck Reed, CPA
. Secrriligs [tered Through 151 Slobal Copital Cara. - Mernbar lasD, SRS
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In accordance with Genernment Awdiiing Standards, we have also issued our repert dated
March @, 2001, on our consideration of the County's internal contral over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions ol laws, regulations, conlracts, and grants

Our audit was made for the purpose of Tooning an opinion on the geneal purpose financial
statements taken as a whole, The combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and the accompanying financial information listed as schedules in the talile of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a reguired part of the general purpose
financial statements of the Counly. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit ol the general purpose financial statements and, in cur opinion, is fairly presented
in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

The Statistical Section as listed in the table of conlents has nol been audited by us, and, accordingly,
WE EXPress no opinion on such inforinalion,

C%ui*“éé f ,f/&’/ Y[ﬂﬂmﬁa Pl (W

CHARLES E. BEEED & ASSOCIATES, P.C
Certified ["ublic Accountants & l',nn.t.uhnrn.t.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPESAND ACCOUNT GROUPS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

(With comparative totalsfor September 30, 1999)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE
ASSETSAND OTHER DEBITS
ASSETS:
CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 22,353,438 5,216,516 67,901,768 2,294,597
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 391,155 39,859 103 -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 176,418 29,405 524,456 17,982
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 2,160,766 - - 216,327
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 1,379,081 - - 138,067
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 3,136,629 299,095 - 31,801
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1,430,470 853,415 - -
INVENTORY, At Cost 491,079 - - -
PREPAID ITEMS 23,938 4,644 - -
FIXED ASSETS, Net, where applicable, of
Accumulated Depreciation - - - -
OTHER DEBITS:
AMOUNTSAVAILABLE IN
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS - - - -
AMOUNTS TO BE PROVIDED FOR:
RETIREMENT OF CAPITAL LEASES - - - -
RETIREMENT OF GENERAL
LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER LIABILITIES - - - -
TOTAL ASSETSAND OTHER DEBITS $ 31,542,974 6,442,934 68,426,327 2,698,774

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT 1

PAGE 1 OF 2
PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY TOTALS
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS (Memorandum Only)
GENERAL GENERAL
INTERNAL FIXED LONG-
ENTERPRISE SERVICE AGENCY ASSETS TERM DEBT 2000 1999

- 6,992,266 20,668,002 - - 125,426,587 75,985,441
235,054 938,405 9,078 - - 1,613,654 789,307

- 53,390 - - - 801,651 294,456

- - - - - 2,377,093 2,498,899

- - - - - 1,517,148 1,611,400

- - 105,557 - - 3,573,082 2,752,805

13,015 6,332 1,192,970 - - 3,496,202 3,019,098
43,287 - 55,277 - - 589,643 620,661
683 - - - - 29,265 31,159
18,267,897 - - 121,956,261 - 140,224,158 131,434,770
- - - - 2,356,619 2,356,619 1,887,549

- - - - 831,697 831,697 1,143,050

- - - - 81,476,845 81,476,845 28,736,520
18,559,936 7,990,393 22,030,884 121,956,261 84,665,161 364,313,644 250,805,115

[CONTINUED]



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPESAND ACCOUNT GROUPS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparative totals for September 30, 1999)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE
LIABILITIESAND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTSPAYABLE $ 3,210,990 811,903 1,129,450 -
CLAIMSLIABILITY - - - -
COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE 416,275 - - -
DEFERRED REVENUES 3,420,290 727,225 - 342,155
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 5,385 567,054 - -
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 360 - - -
OTHER PAYABLES - - - -
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 10,000 - - -
COMPENSATED ABSENCES, Non-current - - - -
CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE - - - -
BONDSPAYABLE - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,063,300 2,106,182 1,129,450 342,155
EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL (net of depreciation) - - - -
INVESTMENTS IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - - - -
RETAINED EARNINGS:
UNRESERVED - - - -
FUND BALANCES:
RESERVED FOR INVENTORY 491,079 - - -
RESERVED FOR DEBT SERVICE - - - 2,356,619
RESERVED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS - - 67,296,877 -
RESERVED FOR PREPAID ITEMS 23,938 4,644 - -
UNRESERVED 23,964,657 4,332,108 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 24,479,674 4,336,752 67,296,877 2,356,619
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND
OTHER CREDITS $ 31,542,974 6,442,934 68,426,327 2,698,774

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT 1

PAGE 2 OF 2

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY TOTALS

FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS (Memorandum Only)
GENERAL GENERAL
INTERNAL FIXED LONG-
ENTERPRISE  SERVICE AGENCY ASSETS TERM DEBT 2000 1999

175,754 - 15,877,464 - - 21,205,561 21,573,640
- 1,867,242 - - - 1,867,242 2,763,262
21,187 - - - - 437,462 844,781
- - - - - 4,489,670 4,787,207
483,885 - 2,516,758 - - 3,573,082 2,752,805
- - 3,165,635 - - 3,165,995 2,837,187
- 471,027 - - 471,027 370,537
28,023 - - - - 38,023 38,619
210,874 - - - 7,448,464 7,659,338 6,684,903
- - - - 831,697 831,697 1,143,050
- - - - 76,385,000 76,385,000 24,055,000
919,723 1,867,242 22,030,884 - 84,665,161 120,124,097 67,850,991
14,232,508 - - - - 14,232,508 14,979,692
- - - 121,956,261 - 121,956,261 112,684,296
3,407,705 6,123,151 - - - 9,530,856 8,536,655
- - - - - 491,079 583,496
- - - - - 2,356,619 1,930,737
- - - - - 67,296,877 15,570,544
. . . - - 28,582 30,476
- - - - - 28,296,765 28,638,228
17,640,213 6,123,151 - 121,956,261 - 244,180,547 182,954,124
18,559,936 7,990,393 22,030,884 121,956,261 84,665,161 364,313,644 250,805,115




JEFFERSON COUN

1Y, lEXAS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDI TURES, AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMEN I AL FUND | YPES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparative totals for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

REVENUES:
TAXES
PROPERTY
SALESTAX
FEES
LICENSES
SALES, RENTALS, AND SERVICES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
FINES AND FORFEITURES
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS - OTHER
GOVERNMENTS
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
CONTRACT SERVICES
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT

AND STRUCTURES

CAPITAL OUTLAY

DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
PROCEEDS FROM BOND SALE
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING (USES)

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (RESTATED)

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30

GOVERNMENIAL FUND | YPES

SPECTAL CAPITAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE
$ 38,878,809 5,112 - 3,740,351
13,860,790 - - -
7,680,518 3,051,045 - -
487,024 - - -
4,727,874 - . .
640,984 - - -
2,419,621 945,619 - -

- 8,127,981 250,390 -

1,515,469 338,420 2,818,338 511,083
10,505 3,287 - -

260 15,445 - -
70,221,854 12,486,909 3,068,728 4,251,434
11,401,626 225,131 - -
38,797,554 10,745,627 - -

511,909 4,189 - -
5,977,885 202,545 - -

- 9,684 - .
9,470,875 71,470 - -
2,388,895 1,301,346 7,191,638 -

- - - 2,670,000

. . . 1,112,364
68,548,744 12,559,992 7,191,638 3,782,364

1,673,110 (73,083) (4,122,910) 469,070

- - 53,795,969 -

- 604,974 6,807,739 -
(2,616,142) (196,731) (4,629,840) -
(2,616,142) 408,243 55,973,868 -

(943,032) 335,160 51,850,958 469,070
25,422,706 3,997,307 15,445,919 1,887,549

- 4,285 - -

25,422,706 4,001,592 15,445,919 1,887,549
$ 24,479,674 4,336,752 67,296,877 2,356,619

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOTALS
(Memorandum Only)
RESTATED

2000 1999
42,624,272 42,347,242
13,860,790 13,502,676
10,731,563 10,679,407
487,024 450,865
4,727,874 7,563,814
640,984 707,981
3,365,240 2,922,403
8,378,371 8,408,841
5,183,310 2,638,316
13,792 21,229
15,705 13,034
90,028,925 89,255,808
11,626,757 10,348,142
49,543,181 47,441,074
516,008 513,718
6,180,430 5,199,497
9,684 39,053
9,542,345 8,698,584
10,881,879 6,594,022
2,670,000 2,405,000
1,112,364 1,067,213
92,082,738 82,306,303
(2,053,813) 6,949,505
53,795,969 5,860,270
- 392,528
7,412,713 5,794,077
(7,442,713) (5,824,077)
53,765,969 6,222,798
51,712,156 13,172,303
46,753,481 33,507,673
4,285 (16,495)
46,757,766 33,581,178
98,469,922 46,753,481

EXHIBIT 2



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES -
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP) - GENERAL AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

GENERAL FUND

VARTANCE
FAVORABLE
ACTUAL BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
TAXES:
PROPERTY $ 38,878,809 37,624,454 1,254,355
SALESTAX 13,860,790 13,350,000 510,790
FEES 7,680,518 6,898,786 781,732
LICENSE 487,024 466,510 20,514
SALES, RENTALS, AND SERVICES 4,727,874 3,438,571 1,289,303
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 640,984 341,898 299,086
FINES AND FORFEITURES 2,419,621 1,683,083 736,538
INTEREST 1,515,469 1,100,000 415,469
MISCELLANEOUS 10,505 15,200 (4,695)
CONTRIBUTIONS 260 100 160
TOTAL REVENUES 70,221,854 64,918,602 5,303,252
EXPENDITURES!
CURRENT:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 11,401,626 12,545,407 1,143,781
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 38,797,554 39,571,503 773,949
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 511,909 584,788 72,879
HEALTH AND WELFARE 5,977,885 6,196,498 218,613
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT
AND STRUCTURES 9,470,875 10,762,282 1,291,407
CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,388,895 2,888,165 499,270
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL - - -
INTEREST AND COMMISSIONS - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 68,548,744 72,548,643 3,999,899
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,673,110 (7,630,041) 9,303,151
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS - - -
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN - - -
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT (2,616,142) (3,236,169) 620,027
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (2,616,142) (3,236,169) 620,027
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING (USES) (943,032) (10,866,210) 9,923,178
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 25,422,706 25,422,706 -
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER - - -
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 24,479,674 14,556,496 9,923,178

The notes to the financia statements are an integra part of this statement.



EXHIBIT 3

DEBT SERVICE FUND

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
ACTUAL BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
3,740,351 3,766,830 (26,479)
511,083 - 511,083
4,251,434 3,766,830 484,604
2,670,000 2,670,000 -
1,112,364 1,115,483 3,119
3,782,364 3,785,483 3,119
469,070 (18,653) 487,723
469,070 (18,653) 487,723

1,887,549 1,887,549 -

2,356,619 1,868,896 487,723




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGESIN

FUND EQUITY - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

EXHIBIT 4

TOTALS
(Memorandum Only)
INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE 2000 1999
OPERATING REVENUES:

CHARGES FOR SERVICES $ 2,154,500 10,114,712 12,269,212 10,735,195
OPERATING EXPENSES:

COST OF SALESAND SERVICES 2,585,093 8,876,731 11,461,824 11,310,981

DEPRECIATION 951,291 - 951,291 855,042

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,536,384 8,876,731 12,413,115 12,166,023
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (1,381,884) 1,237,981 (143,903) (1,430,828)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF EQUIPMENT (1,633) - (1,633) -
INTEREST 6,750 355,803 362,553 389,903
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 5,117 355,803 360,920 389,903
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS (1,376,767) 1,593,784 217,017 (1,040,925)
TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS:

GENERAL FUND - 30,000 30,000 30,000
NET INCOME (LOSS) (1,376,767) 1,623,784 247,017 (1,010,925)
ADD: DEPRECIATION ON CONTRIBUTED ASSETS 747,184 - 747,184 670,911
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RETAINED EARNINGS (629,583) 1,623,784 994,201 (340,014)
RETAINED EARNINGS, OCTOBER 1 4,037,288 4,499,367 8,536,655 8,876,669
RETAINED EARNINGS, SEPTEMBER 30 3,407,705 6,123,151 9,530,856 8,536,655
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL, OCTOBER 1 14,979,692 - 14,979,692 13,723,104
ADD: CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS - - - 1,927,499
LESS: DEPRECIATION ON CONTRIBUTED ASSETS (747,184) - (747,184) (670,911)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL, SEPTEMBER 30 14,232,508 - 14,232,508 14,979,692
FUND EQUITY, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 17,640,213 6,123,151 23,763,364 23,516,347

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT 5

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With compar ative totals for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

TOTALS
(Memorandum only)
INTERNAL RESTATED
ENTERPRISE SERVICE 2000 1999
CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING LOSS $ (1,381,884) 1,237,981 (143,903) (1,430,828)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET OPERATING
LOSSTO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPRECIATION 951,291 - 951,291 855,042
(INCREASE) DECREASE IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (10,345) (698,135) (708,480) 47,633
DECREASE IN DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - - - 195,000
DECREASE IN DUE FROM OTHER GOVENMENTAL
ENTITIES - 29,860 29,860 546,487
DECREASE IN RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS - - - 123,705
DECREASE IN PREPAID ITEMS - - - 54
INCREASE IN INVENTORY (6,122) - (6,122) (12,712)
DECREASE IN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (73,814) - (73,814) (48,799)
DECREASE IN CLAIMSLIABILITY - (896,020) (896,020) (203,705)
(DECREASE) IN DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 483,885 - 483,885 (33,844)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OTHER LIABILITIES 20,084 - 20,084 (17,008)
DECREASE IN CUSTOMER DEPOSITS (596) - (596) (5,060)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 1,364,383 (1,564,295) (199,912) 1,446,793
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (17,501) (326,314) (343,815) 15,965
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS - 30,000 30,000 30,000
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - 30,000 30,000 30,000
CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
PAYMENTS FOR CAPITAL ACQUISITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION (470,347) - (470,347) (3,124,029)
RECEIPTS FROM GRANTS - - - 1,927,499
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (470,347) - (470,347) (1,196,530)
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
RECEIPTS OF INTEREST 8,153 338,060 346,213 384,746
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 8,153 338,060 346,213 384,746
NET CASH INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR THE YEAR (479,695) 41,746 (437,949) (765,819)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT BEGINNING OF YEAR 479,695 6,950,520 7,430,215 8,196,034
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT END OF YEAR $ - 6,992,266 6,992,266 7,430,215

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



JFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financid statements of Jefferson County, Texas (ACounty@l) have been prepared in conformity with
generdly accepted accounting principles (AGAAPE) as gpplied to governmentd units. The Governmenta
Accounting Standards Board (AGA SB() isthe accepted standard setting body for establishing governmentd
and financid reporting principles. The most significant accounting and reporting policies of the County are
described in the following notes to the financial statements.

A. Reporting Entity

The County is a public corporation and a political subdivison of the State of Texas. The County is
governed by Commissioners Court, composed of four County Commissionersand the County Judge, al of
whom are dected officids.

The County providesavast array of services, which include public safety, adminigtration of justice, hedth
and human services, recregtion services, public improvements, and generd adminigtretion.

As required by GAAP, the financid statements of the reporting entity include those of the County (the
primary government) and its component unitsin conformity with GASB Statement No. 14, AThe Financid
Reporting Entityd, which supersedes al previous pronouncements issued by GASB and the Nationa
Council of Governmental Accounting (NCGA) for defining the reporting entity.

In accordancewith GASB Statement 14, afinancid reporting entity congssof the primary government and
its components units. Component units are legdly separate organi zations for which the dected officias of
the County arefinancidly accountable, or the relationship to the County is such that exclus on would cause
the County:s financid statements to be mideading or incomplete. The decision to include or exclude a
potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria st forth in GASB

Statement No. 14.

Exduded from the reporting entity:

The following agencies were considered in the determination of component units of the County:sfinancid
reporting entity. 1t was determined that these entities should not be included as component units of the
primary government: Jefferson County Navigation Digtrict, Drainage Didtrict #3, Drainage Didtrict #6,
Drainage Digtrict #7, Foreign Trade Zone, Pleasure Idand Park Board, Jefferson County Health Facilities
Development Corporation, Jefferson County Housing Finance Corporation, and Jefferson County Industrid
Development Corporation.

B. Basisof Presentation - Fund Accounting
The County usesfunds and account groupsto report itsfinancia position and results of itsoperations. Fund

accounting is designed to demondtrate legad compliance and to aid financid management by segregeting
transactions related to certain government functions or activities.



JFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

A fundisaseparate accounting entity with aset of self-baancing accounts. An account group, on the other
hand, isafinancid reporting mechanism designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities
that are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available resources
(Generd Fixed Assets and Genera Long- Term Debt). Funds are classified into three primary categories:
Governmental, Proprietary, and Fiduciary. Each category, inturn, isfurther divided into separateAfud

typesd

Governmental Funds are used to account for the mgjority of the County=sgenerd activities, including the
collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (Specia Revenue Funds), the acquigtion or congtruction
of general fixed assets (Capital Projects Funds), and the servicing of generd long-term debt (Debt Service
Funds). The Generd Fund isused to account for al activities of the County not accounted for in any other
fund.

Proprietary Funds are used to account for activitiessimilar to those found in the private sector, where the
determination of net incomeisnecessary and/or useful to sound financid management. Goodsand services
from such activitiesare provided ether to the public (Enterprise Fund) or financed through chargesto users
or other departments or agencies primarily within the County (Internal Service Funds) on a cost

reimbursement bass.

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assetsheld on behdf of outsiders, including other governments, or
other fundswithin the County. Agency fundsare used to account for assetsthat the County holdson behaf
of others astheir agent.

C. Basisof Accounting

The accounting and financia reporting trestment gpplied to afund is determined by its measurement focus.
All governmenta funds are accounted for using acurrent financia resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generaly are included on the bal ance sheet.
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e. revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.  All proprietary funds are
accounted for on aflow of economic resources measurement focus. With thismeasurement focus, dl assets
and dl liabilities associated with the operation of these fundsareincluded on the balance sheet. Fund equiity
(i.e net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary
fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g. revenues) and decreases (e.g. expenses) in net total
assets.

The basis of accounting is the method by which revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in
the accounts and reported in the financid statements. The County uses the modified accrud basis of

accounting in al governmental fund types and agency funds. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when they become measurable and avalable. AMeasurablel means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and Aavailablel means collected within the
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current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Property taxes
that are measurable and available (receivable within the current period and collected within the current
period or within 60 days theresfter to be used to pay liahilities of the current period) are recognized as
revenue in the year of levy. Property taxes that are measurable, but not available, are recorded, net of
estimated uncollectible amounts, as deferred revenues in the year of levy. Such deferred revenues are
recognized as revenue in the fisca year in which they become available.

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for
expenditures for debt service, and other long-term obligations, which are recognized when paid.

Those revenues susceptible to accruad are property taxes, franchise taxes, sdes tax, licenses, interest
revenue, and chargesfor services. Finesand permits are not susceptibleto accrual because generaly they
are not measurable until received in cash.

The accrud basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types. Under this method revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

The County reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a
potentia revenue does not meet both the Ameasurabled and Aavailablef criteriafor recognition within the
current period. 1n subsequent periodswhen both requirementsfor revenue recognition are met, theliability
for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and the revenue recognized.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, AAccounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds
and Other Governmenta Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accountingd, dl proprietary fundswill continue
to follow Financid Accounting Standards Board (FA SB) pronouncementsissued on or before November
30, 1989. The County has dected not to follow FASB pronouncements issued after that date.

D. Budgets
The County followsthese proceduresin establishing the budgetary datareflected in thefinancia atements
C Department annua budget requests are submitted by the Department or Agency Head to
the County Auditor during thethird quarter of thefisca year for the upcoming fiscd yeer to
begin September 30.

C The County Auditor prepares an estimate of available resources for the upcoming fiscd
yedr.
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C

C

C

The County Auditor preparesthe proposed annual operating budget to be presented to the
Commissioners Court for their consideration. The budget representsthefinancia plan for
the new fisca year.

Public hearings are held on the proposed budget.

The Commissioners Court must adopt an annua operating budget by amgority vote of the
Commissioner Court before October 1. The adopted budget must be balanced; that is,
available resources must be sufficient to support annua appropriations.

The department isthe legd levd of budgetary control. Commissioners Court gpprovd is
necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. For the year ending September
30, 2000, Commissioners Court approved $1,345,511 in budget transfers. Transfersmay
not increase the total budget.

Annud budgets are legaly adopted for the Genera Fund, Debt Service Funds and the
Enterprise Fund. Budgets for Grant Funds are established pursuant to grant awards and
budgets for Capital Projects are established on a project basis.

Appropriaions lapse a year-end for al budgeted funds.

Budgets are prepared on a basis consstent with GAAP.

E. Cash and Investments

Cash and investmentsinclude amountsin demand depositsaswel| as certificates of deposit, treasury bonds,
and cash management account.

State statute authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and Federd Agencies,
commercia paper, corporate bonds and repurchase agreements.

Certificates of depodit are reported at carrying amount, which reasonably estimatesfar vaue. Investments
in U.S. Federd Agencies, which are dl short term, are reported at cost, which approximates far vaue.
Additional disclosures are aso presented in Note 2.

F. Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
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expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed. All encumbrances are liquidated at fisca year end.

G. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Short-term advances between funds are accounted for in the gppropriate interfund receivable and payable
accounts. These receivables and payables are classified asAdue from other funds) and Adueto other fundsi
on the balance shest.

H. Inventories

Inventoriesare valued a cost, which gpproximates market, using theAfirg-inffirs- out@ method. The cost of
governmenta fund type inventories are recorded as expenditureswhen consumed rather thanwhenthey are
purchased (consumption method). Reported inventories in the governmental funds are offset by afund
balance reserve, which indicatesthey are unavailablefor gppropriations even though they are acomponent
of net current assets.

|. Restricted Assets

Funds set aside for insurance deposits in the interna service funds are classified as restricted assets since
their useislimited by contractud obligetions.

J. Fixed Assets

Generd fixed assets are not capitdized in the governmenta funds used to acquire or congtruct them.
Instead, capital acquisition and congtruction are reflected as expenditures in governmentd funds, and

the related assets are reported in the general fixed assets account group. For proprietary funds, assetsare
capitaized and reported in the funds that acquire or construct them. All purchased fixed assets are vaued
at cost where historica records are available and at estimated historical cost where no historica records
exig. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value when they are received.

The cogt of norma maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materialy extend
ast lives are not capitdized. Improvements are capitaized and depreciated over the useful lives of the
related fixed assets, as applicable.

Public domain (Ainfrastructuref) genera fixed assets such asroads, bridges, and runways are capitalized, as
these assetsareimmovable and of vaueto the County. Assetsinthe generd fixed asset account group are
not depreciated. Depreciation of buildings, equipment, and vehicles in the proprietary fund types is
computed using the straight-line method for 20 to 35 years, 5to 15 years and 5 years, respectively.
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K. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

In accordance with County regulations, the following post-employment health care benefits are avalable:
Retiree Benefits-

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 8, the County provides post-retirement hedth care
benefitsto al employeeswho retired on or after April 9, 1990. Effective January 1, 1997, Commissoners
Court adopted the following policy detailing digibility requirements for participation in this benefit:

A) the employee must have at least eight years of credited service with the Texas County and
Didrict Retirement System (TCDRS) and have attained the age of sixty; or

B) the employee must have at least thirty years of credited service with TCDRS, or

C) the employee’'s age combined with his years of credited service with TCDRS (each
rounded down to whole years) is at least seventy-five.

The employee's spouse is digible for County paid hedth insurance benefits following the employee's
retirement if:

A) the employee met the above requirements A, B, or C: and,

B) the employee's pouse has at least attained the age of fifty-saven.
If the employees spouse is younger than the age of fifty-seven, the spouse may be covered under the
County=s hedlth insurance program by paying the same spouse dependent premium as regular County
employees. When the spouse reaches age fifty-seven, he/she will then be digible for County-paid

insurance.

If an employee retired from the County prior to April 9, 1990 and returned to County employment, he/she
iseligible for County-paid heeth insurance upon retirement if:

A) at the time of retirement the employee meets the above mentioned requirements, and,

B) the employee returned to County employment for a period of at least two years of
continuous service.
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The County pays 100 percent of hedth insurance premiumsfor thoseretirees and their spousesthat qudlify.
The cogt is recognized as an expenditure when the premium is paid each month. In 2000 those costs
totaled $687,921 (net of participant contributions). At September 30, 2000, two hundred seventeen
participants are eigible to receive benefits.

COBRA Bendfits-

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the County provides hedth care
benefits to digible former employees and digible dependents. Certain requirements are outlined by the
federd government for thiscoverage. Thepremiumispaid infull by theinsured on or before the tenth day
of the month for the actual month covered. This programis offered for a duration of 18 months after the
termination date.

L. Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated sick leave, compensatory time and vacation leave that are expected to beliquidated
with expendable available financid resources are reported as an expenditure and a fund lighbility of the
governmenta fund that will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated sick leave, compensatory time and
vacation leave that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financid resources are
reported in the generd long-term debt account group. No expenditures are recorded for these amounts.
Vested or accumulated sick leave, compensatory time and vacation leave of proprietary fundsare recorded
as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. In accordance with the
provisons of Governmenta Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 16, Accounting for Compensated
Absences, no liahility is recorded for nonvested accumulation rights to recelve sick pay benefits.

M. Long-term Liabilities

Long-term ligbilities that will be financed from governmenta funds are accounted for in the Generd

Long-Term Debt Account Group. The generd long-term debt is secured by the generd credit and taxing
powers of the County. Long-term ligbilities of dl proprietary funds consst of liahilities directly related to,
and expected to be paid entirdy by the proprietary funds. These liabilities are included in the accounts of
such funds.

N. Fund Equity
Contributed capita is recorded in proprietary fundsthat have received capital grantsor contributionsfrom

deveopers, customers, or other funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriated
for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use.
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O. Interfund Transactions

Quas-externd transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that
condtitute reimbursement to a fund for expenditures’expenses initidly made from it that are properly
gpplicableto another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expensesin the reimburang fund and asreductions
of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-externa transactions and reimbursements, are reported as
transfers.  Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as resdud equity
transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers.

P. Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Tota columns on the generd- purpose financia statements are captioned AMemorandum Only@ to indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financid analyss. Datain these columns do not present financid

position, results of operations or changes in financia postion in conformity with generdly accepted

accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund diminations have not
been made to this data

Q. Comparative Data

Comparative total datafor the prior year have been presented in the accompanying financiad statementsin
order to provide an understanding of changesin the County'sfinancial position and operations. However,
comparative data have not been presented in al statements because their inclusion would make certain
gatements unduly complex and difficult to understand.

R. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County congders dl highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or lesswhen purchased to be cash equivalents. Restricted assetsare not included
as cash equivaent for cash flow purposes as these investments are not highly liquid and mature after three
months from September 30, 2000.

Note 2 - Cash and | nvestments

The County's demand deposits and savings accountsissued by the County's depositories were adequately
collaterdized by ether the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation or by collateral (pledged securities) in
the County depository's name and pledged to the County, at September 30, 2000.

Note 2 - Cash and | nvestments (continued)
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Texas Statute and the County's Investment Policy authorizes the County to investin U. S. Treasury Bills,
Notes and Bonds which are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government, U. S.
Government agency securities and insured time deposits issued by banks domiciled in the State of Texas.

The County poolsmost of itscash resources of itsvarious fundsto facilitate the management of cash. Cash
gpplicable to aparticular fund is readily identifiable. The balancesin the pooled cash accounts and other
checking accounts are available to meet current operating requirements. Cash in excess of current
requirementsis invested in various interest- bearing securities.

The deposits made by the County are classified as to risk by the three categories described below:

Category A Insured or collateralized, with securitiesheld by the County or itsagent in
the County:s name.

Category B Caollaterdized, with securitiesheld by the counter party=strust department
or agent in the County=s name.

Category C  Uncollateraized.

Investments made by the County are summarized below. The investments that are represented by specific
identifiable investment securities are classified as to credit risk by the three categories described below:

Category 1 Insured or registered, with securitiesheld by the County or itsagent in the
County-s name.

Category 2 Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party:s
trust department or agent in the County:s name.

Category 3 Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter parties, or
by its trust department or agent but not in the County:s name

Cash and investments at September 30, 2000 are shown below:

Investments $109,152,000
Cashin Banks 16,234,859
Cash on Hand 39,728

Total Cash and Investments $125,426,587
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Category

Carrying Vaue at
Cost, Which
Approximates Fair
A B C Vaue

Cash and Certificatesof Deposit $ 16,234,859 - - $ 16,234,859

Category

Carrying Value at
Cost, Which
Approximates Fair
1 2 3 Vaue

U.S. Federal Agencies $ 109,152,000 - - $ 109,152,000

Note 3 - Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Property taxes are levied by Commissioners: Court on October 1 on property values assessed as of
January 1 of the sameyear. Thetax levy ishilled as soon after October 1 as possible. On February 1 of
the following cdendar year the bill becomes delinquent and pendty and interest is assessed by the County.
The County Commissionersissueatax levy for the County's Generd and Debt Service Funds. Thelevy and
collections are redtricted to the funds they are dlocated for. The delinquent tax receivable, and penalty and
interest receivables represent the past twenty years of uncollected tax levies. The dlowance for
uncollectible was set & thirty percent of the grosstax receivable and fifty percent onpendty and interest as
of September 30, 2000. The alowance has been recorded for property taxes, which are estimated to be
uncollectible as required by generally accepted accounting principles. Thefollowing schedule summarizes
the delinquent taxes receivable as of September 30, 2000.

Rate/$100 Appraisa Vaue $ .365
Taxes Receivable, September 30, 2000 $3,395,847
Allowance For Doubtful Accounts (1,018,754)
Net Receivables, September 30, 2000 $2,377,093

Receivables as of September 30, 2000 consist of the following:



JFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Note 3 - Recaeivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (continued)

Special Capital Internal
General Revenues  Projects Debt Service Enterprise  Service  Agency Totals
Receivables:
Accounts $ 228236 $ 8232 $ 103 $ - $240893 $938405 $9078 $1424,947
Employee 162,919 31,627 - 4,661 - - 199,207
Interest 176,418 29,405 524,456 17,982 - 53,390 - 801,651
Taxes 3,086,809 - - 309,03¢ - - - 3,395,847
Penalty &
Interest 2,758,161 - 276,13 - - - 3,034,296
Gross 6,412,543 69,264 524,559 603,155 245,54 991,795 9,078 8,855,948
Less: Allow-
ance for un-
collectibles (2,305,123) - - (230,779) (10,500) - - (2546/402)
Net Total
Receivables $4,107,420 $ 69264 $524559 $ 372,37 $235054 $991,795 $ 9078  $6,309,546

Note 4 - Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxesarelevied on October 1
and payable by January 31 of thefollowing year. The County billsand collectsits own property taxesand it
asohillsand collectstaxesfor Jefferson County Navigation Digtrict, Jefferson County DrainageDidrict #3,
#6, and #7, Port of Beaumont, Port of Port Arthur, Water Digtrict #10, the Bevil Oaks Municipa Utility
Didtrict, Nederland Independent School Didtrict, Northwest Forest Municipa Utility Didtrict, Rurd Fire#1,
Trinity Bay Conservation Digtrict, Port of Sabine Pass, Sabine Pass Independent School District, Port
Arthur Independent School Didtrict, City of Port Arthur, Hamshire Fannett Independent School Didrict,
Port Neches-Groves Independent School Didtrict, the County Education Didtrict, Cardinad Meadows,
Beaumont Independent School Didrict, City of Beaumont, City of Groves, City of Nederland, and the
Emergency Service Didlrict. Collections of these taxes and remittance of them to the various didtricts are
accounted for in the Tax Assessor - Collector Agency Fund. The County is permitted by the State
Condtitution to levy taxes up to $.80 per $100 of assessed val uation for general government services and
the payment of principa and interest on Long-Term Debt. In addition to its taxes subject to the $.80 tax
limitation, the County's voters have authorized thelevy of aspecia tax of $.15 per $100 assessed vauation
solely for road maintenance expenses. The County is aso authorized by the voters to levy the Farm to
Market and Latera Road Tax of $.30 per $100 of assessed vauefor the purpose of maintaining roadsand
bridges.

For the year ended September 30, 2000, the combined tax rateto finance general government servicesand
the payment of principa and interest on long-term debt was $.365.



JFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Note 5 - Changes In General Fixed Assets

A summary of changesin generd fixed assetsfollows

County Assets 10/01/1999 C Additions Deletions 9/30/2000
Land $6,207,106 $ - $ -- $6,207,106
Buildings 51,298,541 727,327 -- 52,025,868
Other Improvements 14,471,267 328,158 4,989 14,794,437
Property and Equipment 20,955,435 3,084,52C 1,541,797 22,498,158
Roads, Bridges, and Related
Right-of-way 16,972,506 87,93¢ 17,060,445
109,904,855 4,227,945 1,546,786 $112,586,014
Congtruction in Progress 2,779,441 7,600,729 1,009,923 9,370,247
Total Fixed Assets $112,684,296 $11,828,674  $2,556,709 $121,956,261

A summary of fixed assets of the Enterprise Fund at September 30, 2000 is presented below:

Land
Buildings and Improvements

Equipment

Total Assets Before Depreciation
Less. Accumulated Depreciation

Congtruction in Progress
Totd Enterprise Fund

Note 6 - Operating L eases

County as Lessor

$3,024,815
34,312,218
1,869,165

39,206,198
(21,185,014)

18,021,184
246,713

$18,267,897

The County has entered into various operating leases of County-owned property to others as described

below:

The County=s arport conducts amgor part of its operations from leased facilities, which include
officeand parking lot spacesfor car renta agencies, termind spacefor atravel agency, arestaurant
and advertisng agency, land for a driving range, and hanger space. All leases are classfied as
operating leases. The renta payments under the leases for the car
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rentd agencies are based on a minimum renta plus a percentage of sdes. The rentd payments
under the leases for the travel agency, driving range, restaurant, and advertising agency are based
on apercentageof sdes. Therenta paymentsunder theleasesfor the hanger spaces are based on
afixed amount per squarefoot of spaceleased. All of the operating leases are month to month and
will expire over the next two years and include 30-day cancellation clauses. In most cases, the
County expectsthat in the normal course of business, leaseswill be renewed or replaced by other
leases.

The County aso leases a building to the U.S. Postd Service. Thisleaseis dso classfied asan
operating lease. Therental payments under theleasefor the Postal Service areafixed amount for a
ten-year period. Thisleaseis noncancdlable.

Thefollowing schedule providesan andysis of the County:sinvestment in property on operating leasesand
property held for lease by major classes as of September 30, 2000:

Airport Terminal $2,659,669
Postal Building 2,200,214
4,859,833

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,121,796)
$3,738,087

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rentals on noncancellable operating leases as of
September 30, 2000:

Fiscal Y ear Ended September 30

2001 $239,670
2002 239,670
2003 239,670
2004 79,890

$793,900

Minimum future rentals do not include contingent renta's, which may be received as ipulated in the lease
contracts. These contingent renta payments occur only if the use exceeds a certain leve of activity each
year.

Contingent rentals on Airport cancelable operating leases for the year ended September 30, 2000 are
$237,556.
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Thefdlowing isasummary of Long-Term Debt transactions for the governmenta funds of the County for
the year ended September 30, 2000:

Bonds Compensated Capital

Payable Absences L eases
Payable at October 1, 1999 $24,055,00C $6,569,069 $1,143,050
Additions 55,000,00C 1,295,670 -
Reductions 2,670,00C 416,275 311,353
Payable at September 30, 2000 $76,385,00C $7,448,464 $831,697

Bonds payable at September 30, 2000 are comprised of thefollowingindividudly issued generd obligation
bonds:

General Obligation Bonds:

$6,000,000 1993 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments from $100,000 to

$700,000 through August 1, 2010; interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%. $5,700,000
$19,000,000 1993 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from$800,000 to $1,305,000

through August 1, 2010; interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%. 9,685,000
$6,000,000 1999 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments from $600,000 to

$1,000,000 through August 1, 2007; interest rates ranging from 3.65% to 4.10%. 6,000,000
$55,000,000 2000 Certificates of Obligation duein annual installments from $350,000 to

$5,200,000 through August 1, 2025; interest rates ranging from 5.25% to 6.0%. 55,000,000
Total Genera Obligation Bonds $76,385,000

The annud requirements to amortize bonds outstanding as of September 30, 2000, including interest
payments of $69,260,510 are as follows:

Fiscal Y ear Ending September 30

2001 $7,911,346
2002 6,277,183
2003 6,274,926
2004 6,266,901
2005 6,263,813
2006-2025 112,651,341

Total $145,645,510
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Thereiscurrently $2,356,619 availablein the Debt Service Fundsto service the genera obligation bonds.
The County has no authorized but unissued bonds at September 30, 2000.

There are a number of limitations and redtrictions contained in the various bond debentures regarding
authorized uses of bond proceeds. The County is in compliance with dl sgnificant limitations and
redtrictions.

Capita Lease Obligations;

The County isobligated under certain leases accounted for as capital leases. The leased assetsand related
obligationsare accounted for in the Generd Fixed Assets Account Group and the Generad Long Term-Delat
Account Group, respectively. Thefollowing isaschedule of future minimum lease payments under capital
leases, together with the net present vaue of the minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2000.

Capital Lease
Fiscal Y ear Ending September 30 Payable

2001 $316,899
2002 274,302
2003 258,806
2004 58,901
Minimum Lease Payments For All Capital Leases 903,908
Less: Amount representing interest at the County-sincremental
borrowing rate of interest 77,211
Present value of the minimum lease payments $831,697

Prior Refunding Issues;

In prior years, the County issued genera obligation bondsto advance refund certain generd obligation and
other bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bondsin anirrevocable trust to provide for al future debt
service when due to the earliest cdll date or to maturity on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the ligbility for the refunded bonds are not included in the County:s financid statements. The
following reflects the refunded bonds as of the date of the refunding and as of September 30,2000:

Outstanding Outstanding
Refunding Asof Asof
Type Series Date Refunding 9/30/00

Generd Obligation 1990 1993 $10,300,000 $8,600,000
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Conduit Debt Obligations

The County hasissued Hous ng Finance Corporation Bondsand Hedth Fecilities Devel opment Corporation
Bonds to provide financia assstance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and congtruction of
facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are
payable soldy from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon

repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilitiestransfersto the private- sector entity serviced by
the bond issuance. Neither the County, the State, nor any poalitical subdivison thereof is obligated in any
manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liahilities in the
accompanying financid datements.

Asof September 30, 2000, therewerefive series of Jefferson County Hous ng Finance Corporation Bonds
with an aggregate principa amount payable of $30,470,098, and two series of Jefferson Hedlth Facilities
Development Bonds with an aggregate principa amount payable of $31,530,000.

Note 8 - Texas County and District Retirement System Pension Plan

Plan Description -

The County provides retirement, disability, and desth benefits for dl of its full-time employees through a
nontraditiona defined benefit pengon plan in the satewide Texas County and Didtrict Retirement System
(TCDRYS). TheBoard of Trustees of TCDRS is responsble for the administration of the Statewide agent
multiple-employer public employee retirement system congsting of 506 nontraditiona defined benefit
penson plans. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a comprehensve annud financia report (CAFR) on a
cdendar year bass. The CAFR is available upon written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at
P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas

78768-2034.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the employer, within the options availablein the
Texas date satutesgoverning TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Memberscan retire at ages 60 and abovewith 8 or
more years of service, with 30 year of service regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of
sarviceequals 75 or more. Members are vested after 8 years of service, but must leave their accumulated
contributionsin the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit. Memberswho withdraw their persond
contributions in alump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by their employer.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employees contributions to the plan, with interest, and
employer-financed monetary credits. Theleve of these monetary creditsisadopted by the governing body
of theemployer withinthe actuarial congtraintsimposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting benefitscan
be expected to be adequately financed by the employer=s commitment to contribute. At retirement, death,
or disability, the benefit is caculated by converting the sum of

the employees accumul ated contributions and the empl oyer-financed monetary creditsto amonthly annuity
using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.
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Funding Policy -The employer has eected the annudly determined contribution rate (ADCR) plan

provisonsof the TCDRSAct. The planisfunded by monthly contributions from both employee members
and the employer based on the covered payroll of employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the
contribution rate of the employer is actuaridly determined annudly. The employer contributed using the
actuaridly determined rate of 9.70% for the months of the accounting year in 1999, and 10.03% for the
months of the accounting year in 2000.

The contribution rate payable by the employee membersfor the calendar year 2000 istherate of 7.0% as
adopted by the governing body of the employer. The employee contribution rate and the employer
contribution rate may be changed by the governing body of the employer within the options availableinthe
TCDRSACct.

Annual Pension Cost -

For the employer=s accounting year ending September 30, 2000, the annua pension cost for the TCDRS
plan for itsemployeeswas $3,118,930, and the actua contributionswere $3,118,930. Theannud required
contributionswere actuarialy determined asapercent of the covered payrall of the participating employees,
andwerein compliancewiththe GASB Statement No 27 parametersbased onthe actuaria vauationsas of
December 31, 1997 and December 31, 1998, the basis for determining the contribution ratesfor calendar
years 1999 and 2000. The December 31, 1999 actuarid vauation is the most recent va uation.

ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION

Actuarial valuation date 12/31/97 12/31/98 12/31/99
Actuarial cost method Entry age entry age entry age
Amortization method level percentage of level percentage of level percentage of
payroll, open payroll, open payroll, open
Amortization period in years 20 20 20
Asset valuation method long-term long-term long-term
appreciation appreciation appreciation
with adjustment with adjustment with adjustment
Assumptions:
Investment return® 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Projected salary increases’ 5.9% 5.9% 5.9%
Inflation 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Cost-of-living adjustments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Y ncludesinflation at the stated rate.



JFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

Note 8 - Texas County and District Retirement System Pension Plan (continued)

TREND INFORMATION
FOR THE RETIREMENT PLAN FOR THE EMPLOYEESOF
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

Accounting Annua Percentage Net
Y ear Pension of APC Penson
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
09/30/1998 $2,631,832 100% $--
09/30/1999 $2,844,093 100% $--
09/30/2000 $3,118,930 100% $--

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROCESSFOR THE RETIREMENT PLAN
FOR THE EMPLOYEES OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

Actuarid UAAL asa

Actuarid Accrued Unfunded Annua Percentage

Actuarid Vaue of Liability AAL Funded Covered  of Covered
Vauation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 2 Payroll
Date (@ (b) (b-a) (alb) (©) [(b-a)/c]

12/31/97°  $72,036,092 $90,289,293  $18,253,201 79.78% $36,519,571  49.98%
12/31/98  $78,250,886 $98,606,106  $20,355,220 79.36% $38,483,091  52.89%
12/31/99  $86,230,634 $107,351,706 $21,121,072 80.33% $42,092,101  50.18%

% The annual covered payroll is based on the employee contributions received by TCDRS for the year ending with the
valuation date.

3 Revised economic and demographic assumptions due to an experience review were reflected in this valuation.
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Note 9 - Interfund Transactions

Interfund Receivables and Payables for the year ended September 30, 2000 are detailed below:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Genera Fund $3,136,629 $5,38E
Security Fee Fund 12,718 -
Law Library Fund 5170 -
Juvenile Probation and
Detention Fund 1,382 -
Bail Bond License Fund 300 3,837
Law Officer Training Fund - 30,504
County Clerk Records
Management 20,010 -
Digtrict Clerk Records
Management 5,732 -
Child Welfare Fund 5,385 156,01€
Constable Pct 4 Forfeiture
Fund - -
Sheriff:s Forfeiture Fund - -
Narcotics Task Force GPI - 60,861
Community Supervision 147,408 -
Restitution Center #1 16,403 -
Restitution Center #2 19,74 -
Juvenile Accountability - 49,00¢
Drug Diversion 4,138 -
CPS Mediation Project - 1,965
Safe & Sober Step Program - 7,795
Narcotics Task Force #11 48,270 222 37€
Narcotics Task Force #10 12,425 -
Auto Theft Grant -- 17,30C
Violence Against Women #2 -- 17,392
Total Special Revenue Funds 299,095 567,054
1993 Bond Refunding 17,023 -
1993 Certificates of
Obligation 3,617 -
1999 Certificates of
Obligation 141 -
2000 Certificates of
Obligation 11,020 -

Total Debt Service Funds 31,801 -
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Note 9 - Interfund Transactions (continued)

Interfund Receivables and Payables for the year ended September 30, 2000 (continued)

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Southeast Texas Regional

Airport $-- $483,88E
Total Enterprise Fund -- 483,885
Treasurer Maintained Fund 105,557 51C
County Clerk Fund - 123,58¢
Didtrict Clerk Fund - 98,407
Sheriff-s Fund - 208,00
Justice of the Peace Fund - 229,31¢
Constables- Fund - 6,37t
Tax Assessor-Collector Fund - 954,274
Adult Probation Fund - 155,361
Juvenile Probation Fund - 2,71€
Restitution Center #1 Fund -- 16,71C
Restitution Center #2 Fund - 19,755
Downtown Jail Lease Fund - 701,24¢
Total Agency Funds 105,557 2,516,75¢
Total $3,573,082 $3,573,082

Interfund Transfers for the year ended September 30, 2000 are detailed below:

Operating Operating
Transfers Transfers
Fund In Out

General Fund $-- $2,616,142
Juvenile Probation & Detention Fund - $28,163
Narcotics Task Force GPI - 168,568
Juvenile Probation & Detention— State Aid Fund $16,862 -
Juvenile Challenge Program Fund 119,310 -
Juvenile Accountability Program 11,300 -
Safe & Sober Step Program 15,954 -
Law Enforcement Block Grant 1,445
Narcotics Task Force Grant #11 Fund 82,246 -
Narcotics Task Force Grant #10 Fund 184,933 -
Domestic Violence Grant #10 Fund 71,409 -
Drug Impact Court Grant #8 Fund 68,253 -
Violence Against Women Grant Fund 23438 -
Violence Against Women #2 Grant Fund 9,824 -

Total Special Revenue Funds 604,974 196,731
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Note 9 - Interfund Transactions (continued)

Interfund Transfers for the year ended September 30, 2000 (continued)

Operating Operating

Fund Transfersin Transfers Out

Capital Projects Fund 2,177,899 4,629,840

ISTEA Courthouse Preservation Project 1,144,957 -
Downtown Repairs 7,522

Southeast Texas Entertainment Complex 3,477,361 -

Total Capital Projects Funds 6,807,739 4,629,840
Liability Insurance Fund 30,000

Total Internal Service Funds 30,000 --

Total $7,442,713 $7,442,713

Note 10 - Deferred Compensation Plan

Employeesof Jefferson County, Texasmay participatein adeferred compensation plan adopted under the
provisonsof Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with Respect to Service
for State and Loca Governments).

The deferred compensation plan is administered by an unrdated financid ingtitution. Amendments to the
laws governing Section 457 deferred compensation plans substantially became effective January 1, 1997.
The County gpproved plan amendments such that plan assetsareheld in trust by athird party custodian, for
the exclusve benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The assetswill not be diverted to any
other purpose. The County=sbeneficia ownership of plan assetswill be hdd for thefurther exclusive benefit
of the plan for the exclusive benefit of participants and beneficiaries. Accordingly, the County performs
minimal adminigrative functionsand does not perform any investment functionsfor the plan. Consequently,
the assets held by the custodian are not included in the financid statements as of September 30, 2000.
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Note 11 - Individual Funds Deficit Fund Equity and Budgetary Concerns

The following funds had a deficit fund baance as of September 30, 2000:

Specid Revenue Funds

Law Officer Training Fund $6,654
Bal Bond License Fund 3,912
Community Supervison 117,356
Totd for Specid Revenue Funds 127,922
Totd Deficit Fund Balances $127,922

If funding does not become available to cover these deficit fund balances from other governmental entities,
the County plansto transfer funds from the genera fund to cover the deficit fund balance.

Note 12 - Risk M anagement

The Hedlth Insurance Fund was established to account for the County:s group hedlth insurance plan.
Effective January 1, 1998, the County became sdlf-insured on medica and denta coverage. Beginningin
March 2000 County has developed a Claims Processing department to pay clams, perform utilization
review, secure specific and aggregate reinsurance, access managed care hedlth networks, and various
adminigtrative duties for clams processing. For the year ended September 30, 2000, the County had
specific reinsurance for daimsin excess of $150,000 per individua and $10,081,922 intheaggregate. The
County currently provides medica and dental benefits to its digible employees and retirees. The County
currently pays the full cost of employees only and 60% of the cost for dependent premiums. This fund
serves asaclearing account for the collection of premiumsfrom employee payroll deductionsand premiums
for dependents from employee payroll deductions. Ligbilities of the fund are reported when it is probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilitiesinclude an
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated consdering
recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Heath Insurance Trust Fund=s daimslighility (induding an
estimate for clams incurred but not reported) were:

2000 1999
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $2,323,316 $1,680,317
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 8,192,695 8,659,462
Claim payments (9,082,826) (8,016,463)

Liability for claims, end of fiscal year $1,433,185 $2,323,316
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Note 12 - Risk M anagement- continued

The Liahility Insurance Fund was established to account for the contributions from the General Fund for
payment of generd liability dlams. Under the laws of the State of Texas, clams for torts are limited to
$100,000 per person and $300,000 per incident. The Liability Fund recordsaclaim as

payable when information prior to the issuance of thefinancid statementsindicatesthat it isprobablethat a
ligbility has been incurred a the date of the financid statements and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that alosshas occurred and
the amount of theloss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilitiesinclude an amount for clamsthat have been
incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated consdering recent claim settlement trends.
Changesin the Liahility Insurance Fund-s dams liahility (induding an estimate for damsincurred but not
reported) were:

2000 1999
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $258,179 $415,000
Incurred claims and changesin estimates 39,34 60,483
Claim payments (25,822 (217,304)
Liability for claims, end of fiscal year $271,751 $258,179

The Workers Compensation Fund was established to account for the County:s workers: compensation
clams. Contributions are made from the Generd, Specid Revenue and Enterprise Funds for employees
covered under the County=s workers: compensation policy. Contributions to the fund are determined by
pogition class code within each department. As of October 1, 1999, the County is fully insured for
workers compensation claims and employers ligbility. The County has excess coverage for workers
compensdion clams and employers ligbility daims limiting the County:s liability to $500,000 per
occurrence for losses occurring prior to October 1, 1999. Liahilities of the fund are reported when it is
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities
include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are caculated
consdering recent claim settlement trends. Changesin the Worker=s Compensation Fund-sdamsliahility
(including an estimate for claims incurred but not reported) were:

2000 1999
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $181,767 $371,650
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 546,741 300,744
Claim payments (566,202) (990,627)

Liability for claims, end of fiscal year $162,306 $181,767
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Note 13 - Congtruction and Other Significant Commitments

As of September 30, 2000, the County had the following commitments with respect to unfinished capital
projects:

Remaining Construction Expected Date
Capital Project Commitment of Completion
Courthouse Renovation $198,810 09/30/2001
Juvenile Detention Center 4,799,676 09/30/2001
Pleasure ISland GoIf Course 1,210,000 04/30/2002
Southeast Texas
Entertainment Complex 50,722,000 10/01/2003
$56,930,486

Note 14 - Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principaly the State of Texas. Any disallowed expenditures or claims, including amounts a ready
collected, may condtitute aliability of the gpplicable funds. Theamount, if any, of expenditureswhich may
be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at thistimeathough the County expectssuch amounts, if
any, to beimmaterid.

The County isinvolved in lawsuits and other clamsin the ordinary course of operations. The outcome of
these lawsuits and other claims are not presently determinable and the resolution of these matters are not
expected to have amaterid effect on the financia condition of the County.

Note 15 - Prior Period Adjusments

Inthefinancial statementsfor the year ended September 30, 2000, thefollowing adjustmentswere madeto
beginning fund baance in the Specid Revenue Fund:

Special Revenue

Fund
Beginning Fund Balance $3,997,307
Correction of Errors 4,285
Beginning Fund Balance
As Restated $4,001,592

The adjusments to the various specid revenue funds were the results of mathematical mistakes and
unknown facts that existed at the time the financid statements were prepared.
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Note 16 - Restatements and Reclassifications

Certain restatements have been made to the prior year financid statements in order to conform to the
presentation of the current year financid satements.

Note 17 - Segment |nformation for Enterprise Fund

The County maintains one Enterprise Fund, which provides airport services. Segment information for the
year ended September 30, 2000, is as follows:

Airport

Operating revenues $2,154,500
Operating expenses:

Depreciation 951,291

Other 2,585,093
Total operating expenses 3,536,384
Operating loss (1,381,884)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 5117
Net loss (1,376,767)
Net decrease in contributed capital ($747,184)
Net working capital ($416,810)
Net cash used for operating activities ($17,501)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets $470,347
Total assets $18,559,936
Long-term liabilities $210,874

Total fund equity $17,640,213
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for resources devoted to financing the general
services that the County performsfor itscitizens. General tax revenues and other sources
of revenue used to finance the fundamental operations of the County areincluded in this
fund. Thisfund is charged with all costs associated with operating the government for
which a separate fund has not been established. Included in this fund are the following
revenues and expenditures:

Road and Bridge - The revenues and expenditures associated with maintenance of
County roadways in each of four precincts:

Road and Bridge #1

Road and Bridge #2

Road and Bridge #3

Road and Bridge #4

Engineering - The revenues and expenditures associated with the operation of the
County-s engineering department.

Par ks and Recr eation - The revenues and expenditures associ ated with the mai ntenance
and development of the County:s parks and recreational areas.

Jury - The revenues and expenditures associated with the selection of jurors for the
District and County Courts.

Library - The revenues and expenditures associated with the operation of the County:=s
library and related services.

M osguito Contr ol - The revenues and expenditures associated with the effort to control
mosquito and other insect populations within the County.

General Operating - The revenues and expenditures associated with all other County
departments for which a separate fund has not been established.




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

ASSETS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
INTEREST RECEIVABLE
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORIES, At Cost
PREPAID ITEMS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTSPAYABLE
DEFERRED REVENUES:
DELINQUENT TAXES
PENALTY AND INTEREST
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCE:
RESERVE FOR INVENTORIES
RESERVE FOR PREPAID ITEMS
UNRESERVED
TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCE

EXHIBIT A-1

2000 1999
$ 22,353,438 26,473,336
391,155 274,583
176,418 141,142
2,160,766 2,303,016
1,379,081 1,485,085
3,136,629 2,366,959
1,430,470 1,140,570
491,079 583,496
23,938 25,443
$ 31,542,974 34,793,630
3,210,990 4,657,067
2,041,209 2,201,248
1,379,081 1,485,085
5,385 268,526
360 360
10,000 10,000
416,275 748,638
7,063,300 9,370,924
491,079 583,496
23,938 25,443
23,964,657 24,813,767
24,479,674 25,422,706
$ 31,542,974 34,793,630




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

EXHIBIT A-2

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEARSENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

REVENUES:
TAXES:
PROPERTY
SALESTAX
FEES
LICENSES
SALES, RENTALS, AND SERVICES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
FINES AND FORFEITURES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT AND STRUCTURES
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING (USES)

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30

RESTATED

2000 1999
$ 38878809  39,113537
13,860,790 13,502,676
7,680,518 7,601,785
487,024 450,865
4,727,874 7,563,814
640,984 707,981
2,419,621 2,194,163
1,515,469 1,435,060
10,505 21,229
260 110
70,221,854 72,591,220
11,401,626 10,049,691
38,797,554 36,914,103
511,909 510,341
5,977,885 4,996,891
9,470,875 8,698,584
2,388,895 2,613,789
68,548,744 63,783,399
1,673,110 8,807,821
- 392,528
(2,616,142)  (1,268,857)
(2,616,142) (876,329)
(943,032) 7,931,492
25422706 17,423,257
- 67,957
$ 24479674 25422706




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES- ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

2000

EXHIBIT A-3

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
ACTUAL BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:

TAXES:

PROPERTY $ 38,878,809 37,624,454 1,254,355
SALESTAX 13,860,790 13,350,000 510,790

FEES 7,680,518 6,898,786 781,732

LICENSES 487,024 466,510 20,514

SALES, RENTALS, AND SERVICES 4,727,874 3,438,571 1,289,303

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 640,984 341,898 299,086

FINES AND FORFEITURES 2,419,621 1,683,083 736,538

INTEREST 1,515,469 1,100,000 415,469

MISCELLANEOUS 10,505 15,200 (4,695)

CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 260 100 160

TOTAL REVENUES 70,221,854 64,918,602 5,303,252
EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 11,401,626 12,545,407 1,143,781

JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 38,797,554 39,571,503 773,949

EDUCATION AND RECREATION 511,909 584,788 72,879

HEALTH AND WELFARE 5,977,885 6,196,498 218,613

MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT AND STRUCTURES 9,470,875 10,762,282 1,291,407

CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,388,895 2,888,165 499,270

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 68,548,744 72,548,643 3,999,899
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 1,673,110 (7,630,041) 9,303,151
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS - - -

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN - - -

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT (2,616,142) (3,236,169) 620,027

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (2,616,142) (3,236,169) 620,027
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING (USES) (943,032) (10,866,210) 9,923,178
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 25,422,706 25,422,706 -
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER - - -
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 24,479,674 14,556,496 9,923,178
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1999

EXHIBIT A-3

RESTATED

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE

ACTUAL BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
39,113,537 38,371,611 741,926
13,502,676 12,950,000 552,676
7,601,785 6,922,302 679,483
450,865 469,500 (18,635)
7,563,814 2,490,132 5,073,682
707,981 463,991 243,990
2,194,163 1,464,337 729,826
1,435,060 1,080,000 355,060
21,229 15,200 6,029
110 100 10
72,591,220 64,227,173 8,364,047
10,049,691 15,700,132 5,650,441
36,914,103 37,866,856 952,753
510,341 557,325 46,984
4,996,891 6,194,605 1,197,714
8,698,584 10,211,542 1,512,958
2,613,789 2,891,778 277,989
63,783,399 73,422,238 9,638,839
8,807,821 (9,195,065) 18,002,886
392,528 - 392,528
(1,268,857) (1,238,857) (30,000)
(876,329) (1,238,857) 362,528
7,931,492 (10,433,922) 18,365,414

17,423,257 17,423,257 -

67,957 - 67,957
25,422,706 6,989,335 18,433,371
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDUL E OF EXPENDITURES- ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR
HUMAN RESOURCES
COUNTY AUDITOR
COUNTY CLERK
COUNTY JUDGE
RISK MANAGEMENT
COUNTY TREASURER
PRINTING DEPARTMENT
CLAIMS PROCESSING
FEE COLLECTION
PURCHASING AGENT
GENERAL SERVICES
DATA PROCESSING
VETERANS SERVICE

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT:
PRE-TRIAL RELEASE
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
DISTRICT CLERK
CRIMINAL DISTRICT COURT
58TH DISTRICT COURT
60TH DISTRICT COURT
136TH DISTRICT COURT
172ND DISTRICT COURT
252ND DISTRICT COURT
279TH DISTRICT COURT
317TH DISTRICT COURT
JURY
J.P. PRECINCT NO. 1- PLACENO. 1
J.P. PRECINCT NO. 1- PLACENO. 2
J.P. PRECINCT NO. 2
J.P. PRECINCT NO. 4
J.P. PRECINCT NO. 6
J.P. PRECINCT NO. 7
J.P. PRECINCT NO. 8
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 1
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 2
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 3
COURT MASTER
DISPUTE RESOLUTION CENTER
JUVENILE ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL
COMMUNITY SUPERVISION
SHERIFF
CRIME LABORATORY
JAIL
JUVENILE CORRECTIONAL PROBATION
JUVENILE DETENTION HOME
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 1
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 2
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 4
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 6
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 7
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 8
COUNTY MORGUE

TOTAL JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT

EXHIBITA -4
PAGE 1 OF 2

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
ACTUAL BUDGET  (UNFAVORABLE)
2,728,002 2,829,826 101,824
228,931 239,451 10,520
1,011,873 1,052,620 40,747
1,637,377 1,679,881 42,504
734,030 749,073 15,043
183,562 186,566 3,004
189,656 197,860 8,204
128,236 145,316 17,080
235,602 304,889 69,287
84,299 97,357 13,058
411,530 433,656 22,126
2,731,452 3,466,511 735,059
941,371 992,975 51,604
155,705 169,426 13,721
11,401,626 12,545,407 1,143,781
257,609 258,003 394
3,697,800 3,829,114 131,314
1,245,251 1,300,698 55,447
714,554 714,554 -
193,171 193,171 -
182,379 182,379 -
182,948 188,295 5,347
186,620 187,783 1,163
640,307 680,640 40,333
258,289 271,236 12,947
277,770 277,770 -
341,726 341,726 -
228,433 233,164 4,731
235,532 235,532 -
196,722 218,893 22,171
220,453 222,601 2,148
216,624 216,624 -
236,427 237,241 814
185,078 185,078 -
297,739 301,264 3,625
382,264 389,389 7,125
397,349 406,015 8,666
177,680 191,585 13,905
178,059 180,230 2,171
224,245 224,245 -
9,516 9,516 -
6,171,114 6,178,134 7,020
478,450 492,388 13,938
16,384,279 16,384,284 5
1,125,971 1,253,496 127,525
942,919 1,134,942 192,023
467,968 469,625 1,657
294,895 294,895 -
182,970 185,794 2,824
314,027 316,802 2,775
281,349 292,652 11,303
288,709 391,387 102,678
500,358 500,358 -
38,797,554 39,571,503 773,949

[CONTINUED]



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDUL E OF EXPENDITURES- ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

EDUCATION AND RECREATION:
LIBRARY
AGRICULTURAL EXTENSION SERVICE

TOTAL EDUCATION AND RECREATION

HEALTH AND WELFARE:
HEALTH AND WELFARE UNIT 1
HEALTH AND WELFARE UNIT 2
NURSE PRACTITIONER
CHILD WELFARE
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
INDIGENT MEDICAL SERVICE
MOSQUITO CONTROL
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

TOTAL HEALTH AND WELFARE

MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT & STRUCTURES:
COURTHOUSE & ANNEXES
PORT ARTHUR BUILDINGS
MID-COUNTY BUILDINGS
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. 1
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. 2
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. 3
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. 4
ENGINEERING
PARKS & RECREATION
SERVICE CENTER

TOTAL MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT & STRUCTURES

CAPITAL OUTLAY:

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES:
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES

L FUND EXPENDITURES $

EXHIBITA -4
PAGE 2 OF 2

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
ACTUAL BUDGET  (UNFAVORABLE)

207,469 234,694 27,225
304,440 350,094 45,654
511,909 584,788 72,879
724,150 822,577 98,427
750,764 796,551 45,787
164,100 169,062 4,962

218,576 218,576 -
205,444 206,806 1,362
2,257,370 2,323,598 66,228

1,590,276 1,590,276 -
67,205 69,052 1,847
5,977,885 6,196,498 218,613

2,591,192 2,591,192 -

487,529 487,529 -
35,349 40,171 4,822
1,505,607 1,702,608 197,001
1,219,209 1,500,635 281,426
1,264,672 1,536,505 271,833
1,113,213 1,507,367 394,154
605,077 671,125 66,048
49,539 125,662 76,123

599,488 599,488 -
9,470,875 10,762,282 1,291,407
2,388,895 2,888,165 499,270
68,548,744 72,548,643 3,999,899
2,616,142 3,236,169 620,027
2,616,142 3,236,169 620,027
71,164,886 75,784,812 4,619,926




SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources other than expendabl e trusts, or major capita projectsthat arelegally restricted to
expendituresfor specified purposes. Included in this heading are the following individua
funds:

L ateral Road Fund - Thisfund is used to account for expenditures of materialsincurred
in the maintenance of the lateral roads of the County. Financing is provided by
contributions from the State.

Breath Alcohol Testing Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
courts on D.W.I. convictions and the expenditure of those funds.

Security Fee Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the Crimina
Courts to finance security services and equipment for the County Courthouse.

Law Library Fund - This fund is used to account for the maintenance of the County
Law Library. Financingis provided by feesfrom Civil law suitsfiled in District Court and
County Courts-at-law.

Voter Registration Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures made by the
registrars office in connection with voters registration which qualify under section 19.004
of the V.T.C.A. Election Code. Financing is provided by the State of Texas under the
V.T.C.A. Election Code.

Juvenile Probation and Detention Fund - This fund is used to account for receipts
specifically designated for use in juvenile programs.

Bail Bond License Fund - Thisfund is used to account for expenditures made by the
courts from a five hundred dollar fee collected for al bond licenses.

Law Officer Training Fund - This fund is used to account for receipts from the
University of Lamar, which are used to finance the training of county law officers.

County Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to
account for fees collected by the County Clerk for the maintenance of County records
and the expenditure of those funds.




District Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fund - Thisfund is used to
account for fees collected by the District Clerk for the maintenance of County records
and the expenditure of those funds.

D.A.R.E. Contributions Fund - Thisfund is used to account for public contributionsto
the D.A.R.E. program.

M obil Volunteer Program - This fund is used to account for contributions from the
Mobil Foundation, Inc. Volunteer Program and the expenditures of those funds.

Sheriff and Constable Education Fund - This fund is used to account for the
expenditures associated with the education of Sheriff-s deputies and Constables of the
County.

Tax Office Auto Dealer Fund - This fund is used to account for taxes collected from
Loca Auto Dedlerships to be used by the County=s Tax Office.

Unclaimed Funds M anagement Fund - This fund is used to account for Unclaimed
Funds for all County departments.

Child Welfare Fund - Thisfund is used to account for federal, state, and local money
allocated for the care of foster children and the expenditure of this money.

District Attorney Forfeiture Fund - Thisfundisused to account for forfeitures received
by the District Attorney from criminal convictions and the expenditure of those funds.

Constable Pct. #4 Forfeiture Fund - This fund is used to account for forfeitures
received by Constable Pct. #4 from criminal convictions and the expenditure of those
funds.

Sheriff=s Forfeiture Fund - Thisfund is used to account for forfeitures received by the
Sheriff from criminal convictions and the expenditure of those funds.

Hot Check Fund - This fund is used to account for fees received by the District
Attorney for the prosecution of hot check offenders and the expenditure of those funds.

Nar cotics Task Force Fund - Thisfund is used to account for forfeitures received by the
Narcotics Task Force from criminal convictions and the expenditure of those funds.

Probation Department Funds - These funds are used to account for the expenditures of
maintaining probation services as authorized by the County and District Courts.




Financing is provided by State grant and probationary fees. Included in this heading are
the following individua funds:

Juvenile Probation and Detention--State Aid
Juvenile Probation Challenge Program
Juvenile Community Corrections Program
IV-E Foster Care Fund

Progressive Sanctions Probation Officers
Community Supervision

Restitution Center #1

Restitution Center #2

Surveillance Program

Community Corrections

Juvenile Accountability

Drug Diversion Program

Grant Funds - These funds are used to account for receipts of Federal and State grants
designated for special projects or services. Included in this heading are the following
individual funds:

CPS Mediation Project

US Marshals Warrant Grant
Safe & Sober Step

Law Enforcement Block Grant
Narcotics Task Force #11
Domestic Violence #9
Narcotics Task Force #10
Domestic Violence #10
Sewer Improvements Grant
Auto Theft Grant

Drug Impact Court #8
Violence Against Women
Violence Against Women #2
Deyoung Step Sewer Line



ASSETS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

PREPAID ITEMS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND
EUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
DEFERRED REVENUE

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:

RESERVED FOR PREPAID ITEMS

UNRESERVED

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND
FUND BALANCES

EXHIBIT B-1

PAGE 1 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparative totals for September 30, 1999)
BREATH JUVENILE
LATERAL ALCOHOL SECURITY LAW VOTER PROBATION &
ROAD TESTING FEE LIBRARY REGISTRATION DETENTION
FUNDS FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND

429,290 65,863 413,770 9,221 21,656 965,540

- - 568 - 1,060 -
3,351 514 3,213 71 169 10,289
- - 12,718 5,170 - 1,382
- - - - - 59,750

- - 84 - - -
432,641 66,377 430,353 14,462 22,885 1,036,961
- 186 2,103 11,458 - 31,793
- 186 2,103 11,458 - 31,793

- - 84 - - -
432,641 66,191 428,166 3,004 22,885 1,005,168
432,641 66,191 428,250 3,004 22,885 1,005,168
432,641 66,377 430,353 14,462 22,885 1,036,961




EXHIBIT B-1

PAGE 1 OF 2
COUNTY CLERK DISTRICT CLERK
RECORDS RECORDS
BAIL BOND LAW OFFICER MGMT. AND MGMT. AND DARE. MOBIL
LICENSE TRAINING PRESERVATION PRESERVATION CONTRIBUTIONS VOLUNTEER
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND PROGRAM

- - 455,791 159,304 10,469 -

- 560 - - - 6,500
- - 3,557 1,265 82

300 - 20,010 5,732 - -

- 27,595 - - - -
300 28,155 479,358 166,301 10,551 6,500

375 4,305 4,424 1911 298 -

3,837 30,504 - - - -

4,212 34,809 4,424 1,911 298 -
(3,912) (6,654) 474,934 164,390 10,253 6,500
(3,912) (6,654) 474,934 164,390 10,253 6,500
300 28,155 479,358 166,301 10,551 6,500

[CONTINUED]



ASSETS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

PREPAID ITEMS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND
EUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
DEFERRED REVENUE

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:

RESERVED FOR PREPAID ITEMS

UNRESERVED

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND
FUND BALANCES

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

(With comparative totals for September 30, 1999)

EXHIBIT B-1

SHERIFF AND TAX OFFICE UNCLAIMED DISTRICT
CONSTABLE AUTO FUNDS CHILD ATTORNEY
EDUCATION DEALER MANAGEMENT WELFARE FORFEITURE

FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS FUND FUND
$ 107,237 16,826 4,602 156,016 50,672
838 131 - - -
- - - 5,385 -
$ 108,075 16,957 4,602 161,401 50,672
$ 410 10,518 - 5,385 -
- - - 156,016 -
410 10,518 - 161,401 -
107,665 6,439 4,602 - 50,672
107,665 6,439 4,602 - 50,672
$ 108,075 16,957 4,602 161,401 50,672




EXHIBIT B-1

PAGE 2 OF 2
CONSTABLE NARCOTICS
PCT.#4 SHERIFF'S HOT TASK PROBATION TOTALS
FORFEITURE FORFEITURE CHECK FORCE DEPARTMENT GRANT
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS 2000 1999
1,619 312,201 84,368 643,823 1,221,027 87,131 5,216,516 5,655,313
- - - - 29,523 1,648 39,859 40,312
- - - - 5,167 758 29,405 24,001
- - - - 187,703 60,695 299,095 308,910
- - - - 193,887 572,183 853,415 628,192
- - - - 4,326 234 4,644 5,033
1,619 312,201 84,368 643,823 1,641,633 722,649 6,442,934 6,661,851
- 1,166 768 - 354,299 382,504 811,903 1,021,980
- - - 60,861 49,008 266,828 567,054 597,281
- - - - - - - 256,189
- - - - 727,225 - 727,225 789,094
- 1,166 768 60,861 1,130,532 649,332 2,106,182 2,664,544
. ; - - 4,326 234 4,644 5,033
1,619 311,125 83,600 582,962 506,775 73,083 4,332,108 3,092,274
1,619 311,125 83,600 582,962 511,101 73,317 4,336,752 3,997,307
1,619 312,201 84,368 643,823 1,641,633 722,649 6,442,934 6,661,851




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor fiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
FEES
FINES AND FORFEITURES
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -
OTHER GOVERNMENTS
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES

AND EQUIPMENT

CONTRACT SERVICES
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING
(USES)

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated)
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER

EXHIBIT B-2

PAGE 1 0OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
BREATH JUVENILE
LATERAL ALCOHOL SECURITY LAW VOTER PROBATION &
ROAD TESTING FEE LIBRARY REGISTRATION DETENTION
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
- 2,164 147,638 70,407 - 41,565
25,39 - - - - 231,164
24,058 3,636 20,227 533 1,216 76,758
- - - - - 3,287
49,454 5,800 167,865 70,940 1216 352,774
- - - - 132 -
- 5153 60,193 - - 246,234
- - - 4,189 - -
71,470 - - - - -
- 1,948 - 91,009 - 6,800
71,470 7,101 60,193 95,198 132 253,034
(22,016) (1,301) 107,672 (24,258) 1,084 99,740
- - - - - (28,163)
- - - - - (28,163)
(22,016) (1,301) 107,672 (24,258) 1,084 71,577
454,657 67,492 320,578 27,262 21,801 933,192
454,657 67,492 320,578 27,262 21,801 933,192
- - - - - 399
432,641 66,191 428,250 3,004 22,885 1,005,168

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30




EXHIBIT B-2

PAGE 1 0F 2
COUNTY CLERK DISTRICT CLERK
RECORDS RECORDS
BAIL BOND LAW OFFICER MGMT. AND MGMT. AND D.ARE. MOBIL
LICENSE TRAINING PRESERVATION PRESERVATION CONTRIBUTIONS VOLUNTEER
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND PROGRAM
7,800 99,051 239,876 57,442 : )
- - 23,790 10,358 699 -
- - - - 6,770 8,500
7,800 99,951 263,666 67,800 7,469 8,500
- - 196,865 23,081 - -
9,710 74,944 - - 10,145 -
- - 101,720 165,867 - 6,500
9,710 74,944 298,585 188,948 10,145 6,500
(1,910) 25,007 (34,919) (121,148) (2,676) 2,000
(1,910) 25,007 (34,919) (121,148) (2,676) 2,000
(2,002) (31,661) 509,853 285,538 12,929 4,500
(2,002) (31,661) 509,853 285,538 12,929 4,500
(3912 (6,654) 474,934 164,390 10,253 6,500

[CONTINUED)]



REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
FEES
FINES AND FORFEITURES
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -
OTHER GOVERNMENTS
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES

AND EQUIPMENT

CONTRACT SERVICES
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING
(USES)

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated)
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER

EXHIBIT B-2

PAGE 2 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparative totalsfor fiscal year ended September 30, 1999)
SHERIFF AND TAX OFFICE UNCLAIMED DISTRICT
CONSTABLE AUTO FUNDS CHILD ATTORNEY
EDUCATION DEALER MANAGEMENT WELFARE FORFEITURE
FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS FUND FUND

$ - 5112 - - -
- - 3,228 - 1,260
- - - - 48,503

35,496 - - 194,594 -
6,031 35,113 - - 2,023
41,527 40,225 3,228 194,504 51,786

- 5,053 - - -
32,557 - - - 48,287

- - - 202,545 -
- 64,584 - - 5,175
32,557 69,637 - 202,545 53,462
8,970 (29,412) 3,228 (7,951) (1,676)
8,970 (29,412) 3,228 (7,951) (1,676)
98,695 35,851 1,374 7,951 52,348
98,695 35,851 1,374 7,951 52,348
$ 107,665 6,439 4,602 - 50,672

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30




EXHIBIT B-2

PAGE 2 OF 2
CONSTABLE NARCOTICS
PCT. #4 SHERIFF'S HOT TASK PROBATION TOTALS
FORFEITURE FORFEITURE CHECK FORCE DEPARTMENT GRANT
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS 2000 1999
- - - - - - 5112 4,897
- 27,457 61,814 1,103 2,289,340 - 3,051,045 3,077,622
- 378,506 - 518,610 - - 945,619 728,240
- - - - 5,625,230 2,016,101 8,127,981 7,802,959
- 13,645 - 23,636 01,826 487 338,420 336,227
- - - - - - 3,287 -
- - - - - 175 15,445 12,924
- 419,608 61,814 543,349 8,006,396 2,021,147 12,486,909 11,962,869
- - - - - - 225,131 298451
1,727 77,819 34,843 170,000 7,958,763 2,015,252 10,745,627 10,526,971
) i ;i - ) - 4,189 3,377
- - - - - - 202,545 202,606
- - - - - - 71,470 -
- - - - - 0,684 9,684 39,053
- 271,269 8,563 - 100,096 477,815 1,301,346 1,486,350
1,727 349,088 43,406 170,000 8,058,859 2,502,751 12,559,992 12,556,808
(1,727 70,520 18,408 373,349 (52,463) (481,604) (73,083) (593,939)
- - - - 147,472 457,502 604,974 665,395
- - - (168,568) - - (196,731) (202,015)
- - - (168,568) 147,472 457,502 408,243 463,380
(1,727 70,520 18,408 204,781 95,009 (24,102) 335,160 (130,559)
3,346 240,605 65,192 378,181 412,206 97,419 3,997,307 4212318
- - - - 4285 - 4285 (16,495)
3,346 240,605 65,192 378,181 416,491 97,419 4,001,592 4,195,823
- - - - (399) - - (67,957)

1,619 311,125 83,600 582,962 511,101 73,317 4,336,752 3,997,307




EXHIBIT B-3

PAGE 1 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
JUVENILE
PROBATION JUVENILE JUVENILE
AND PROBATION COMMUNITY IV-E FOSTER
DETENTION-- CHALLENGE CORRECTIONS CARE
STATE AID PROGRAM PROGRAM FUND
ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS 47,853 13,321 97,907 215,099
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 1,324 - - -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE - - - -
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - - - -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - 35,301 51,036 43,635
PREPAID ITEMS 194 - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 49,371 48,622 148,943 258,734
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTSPAYABLE 11,824 22,760 14,019 6,726
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - - - -
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - -
DEFERRED REVENUE - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,824 22,760 14,019 6,726
FUND BALANCES:
RESERVED FOR PREPAID ITEMS 194 - - -
UNRESERVED 37,353 25,862 134,924 252,008
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 37,547 25,862 134,924 252,008
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND
FUND BALANCES 49,371 48,622 148,943 258,734




EXHIBIT B-3
PAGE 1 OF 2

PROGRESSIVE
SANCTIONS RESTITUTION RESTITUTION
PROBATION COMMUNITY CENTER CENTER SURVEILLANCE
OFFICERS SUPERVISION #1 #2 PROGRAM

- 117,800 244,624 214,112 12,840
- 21,234 3,210 2,015 -
- 5,167 - - -
- 147,408 16,403 19,754 -
- - 11,570 - -
- 3,116 472 289 -
- 294,725 276,279 236,170 12,840
- 146,100 63,988 52,743 1,832
- 265,981 153,497 156,229 8,038
- 412,081 217,485 208,972 9,870
- 3,116 472 289 -
- (120,472) 58,322 26,909 2,970
- (117,356) 58,794 27,198 2,970
- 294,725 276,279 236,170 12,840

[CONTINUED]



ASSETS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

PREPAID ITEMS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

EXHIBIT B-3

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
DEFERRED REVENUE

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES:
RESERVED FOR PREPAID ITEMS
UNRESERVED
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND
FUND BALANCES

PAGE 2 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
DRUG
COMMUNITY JUVENILE DIVERSION 2000
CORRECTIONS ACCOUNTABILITY PROGRAM TOTAL
165,926 - 91,545 1,221,027
1,740 - - 29,523
- - 5,167
. - 4,138 187,703
- 52,345 - 193,887
255 - - 4,326
167,921 52,345 95,683 1,641,633
22,037 2,061 10,209 354,299
- 49,008 - 49,008
111,602 - 31,878 727,225
133,639 51,069 42,087 1,130,532
255 - - 4,326
34,027 1,276 53,596 506,775
34,282 1,276 53,596 511,101
167,921 52,345 95,683 1,641,633




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

REVENUES:
FEES
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -
OTHER GOVERNMENTS
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
CAPITAL OUTLAY
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES):
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING (USES)

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated)
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER

FUND BALANCES, SEPFTEMBER 30

JUVENILE
PROBATION JUVENILE JUVENILE
AND PROBATION COMMUNITY IV-E FOSTER
DETENTION-- CHALLENGE CORRECTIONS CARE
STATE AID PROGRAM PROGRAM FUND
406,571 118,681 435,050 73,559
406,571 118,681 435,050 73,559
389,203 179,761 307,259 177,932
2,305 - - -
391,508 179,761 307,259 177,932
15,063 (61,080) 127,791 (104,373)
16,862 119,310 - -
16,862 119,310 - -
31,925 58,230 127,791 (104,373)
5,622 (32,671) 7,133 356,381
- 303 -
5,622 (32,368) 7,133 356,381
37,547 25,862 134,924 252,008




EXHIBIT B-4 EXHIBIT B-4
PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGE 1 OF 2
PROGRESSIVE
SANCTIONS RESTITUTION RESTITUTION
PROBATION COMMUNITY CENTER CENTER SURVEILLANCE
OFFICERS SUPERVISION #1 #2 PROGRAM
- 1,806,995 169,181 257,754 -
- 1,701,009 935,099 958,327 48,228
- 91,741 - - -
- 3,509,745 1,104,280 1,216,081 48,228
- 3,758,072 1,026,657 1,175,473 45,555
- 6,656 34,778 19,248 -
- 3,764,728 1,061,435 1,104,721 45,555
- (164,983) 42,845 21,360 2673
- (164,983) 42,845 21,360 2673
399 47,627 15,949 5,838 297
399 47,627 15,949 5,838 297
(399) - - - -
- (117,356) 58,794 27,198 2970

[CONTINUED)]



EXHIBIT B-4

PAGE 2 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
DRUG
COMMUNITY JUVENILE DIVERSION 2000
CORRECTIONS ACCOUNTABILITY PROGRAM TOTAL
REVENUES:
FEES $ - - 55,410 2,289,340
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -
OTHER GOVERNMENTS 696,537 60,896 191,273 5,625,230
INTEREST - 85 - 91,826
TOTAL REVENUES 696,537 60,981 246,683 8,006,396
EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 646,298 71,005 181,548 7,958,763
CAPITAL OUTLAY 37,109 - - 100,096
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 683,407 71,005 181,548 8,058,859
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 13,130 (10,024) 65,135 (52,463)
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES):
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN - 11,300 - 147,472
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - 11,300 - 147,472
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING (USES) 13,130 1,276 65,135 95,009
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 17,170 - (11,539) 412,206
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 3,982 - - 4,285
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated) 21,152 - (11,539) 416,491
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER - - - (399)
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 34,282 1,276 53,596 511,101




ASSETS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE, Net

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

PREPAID ITEMS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND
FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNTSPAYABLE
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

DUE TO OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
RESERVED FOR PREPAID ITEMS

UNRESERVED

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES

EXHIBIT B-5

PAGE 1 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GRANT FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
us SAFE LAW
CPS MARSHALS & ENFORCEMENT
MEDIATION WARRANT SOBER BLOCK
PROJECT GRANT STEP GRANT
$ - 4,027 - 9,530
- - - 119
2,356 - 9,564 -
$ 2,356 4,027 9,564 9,649
$ 391 391 1,769 99
1,965 - 7,795 -
2,356 391 9,564 99
- 3,636 - 9,550
- 3,636 - 9,550
$ 2,356 4,027 9,564 9,649




EXHIBIT B-5

PAGE 1 OF 2
NARCOTICS DOMESTIC NARCOTICS DOMESTIC SEWER
TASK FORCE VIOLENCE TASK FORCE VIOLENCE IMPROVEMENTS AUTO THEFT
#11 #9 #10 #10 GRANT GRANT
14,000 14,964 8,215 11,883 - 15,442
1,648 - - - - -
324 166 - - - 102
48,270 - 12,425 - - -
405,586 19,156 - - - 18,092
234 - - - - -
470,062 34,286 20,640 11,883 - 33,636
242,229 5,708 20,640 - - 2,123
222,376 - - - - 17,300
464,605 5,708 20,640 - - 19,423
234 - - - - -
5,223 28,578 - 11,883 - 14,213
5457 28,578 - 11,883 - 14,213
470,062 34,286 20,640 11,883 - 33,636

[CONTINUED]



EXHIBIT B-5

PAGE 2 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GRANT FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
DRUG VIOLENCE VIOLENCE DEYOUNG 2000
IMPACT AGAINST AGAINST STEP SEWER GRANT
COURT #8 WOMEN WOMEN #2 LINE GRANT TOTALS
ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 9,070 - - - 87,131
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net - - - - 1,648
INTEREST RECEIVABLE - - a7 - 758
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - - - - 60,695
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - 22,380 95,049 572,183
PREPAID ITEMS - - - - 234
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,070 - 22,427 95,049 722,649
LIABILITIESAND
FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTSPAYABLE $ 9,070 - 5,035 95,049 382,504
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - - 17,392 - 266,828
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,070 - 22,427 95,049 649,332
FUND BALANCES:
RESERVED FOR PREPAID ITEMS - - - - 234
UNRESERVED - - - - 73,083
TOTAL FUND BALANCES - - - - 73,317

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 9,070 - 22,427 95,049 722,649




REVENUES:
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -
OTHER GOVERNMENTS
INTEREST
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
AGRICULTURE
CONTRACT SERVICES
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
OPERATING TRANSFERS IN
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING (USES)

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated)
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER

EXHIBIT B-6

PAGE 10F 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GRANT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
us SAFE LAW
CPS MARSHALS & ENFORCEMENT
MEDIATION WARRANT SOBER BLOCK
PROJECT GRANT STEP GRANT

14,715 10,323 26,000 14,445

14,715 10,323 26,000 15,089

14,715 2,907 41,954 534

- 3,780 - 11,256

14,715 6,687 41,954 11,790

- 3,636 (15,954) 3,299

. - 15,954 1,445

. - 15,954 1,445

. 3,636 - 4,744

- - - 4,806

i . - 4,806

- 3,636 - 9,550

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30




EXHIBIT B-6

PAGE 10F 2
NARCOTICS DOMESTIC NARCOTICS DOMESTIC SEWER
TASK FORCE VIOLENCE TASK FORCE VIOLENCE IMPROVEMENTS AUTO THEFT
#11 #9 #10 #10 GRANT GRANT
474,330 19,156 797,328 52,274 11,024 61,347
324 802 234 2,107 - 656
- - - 175 - -
474,654 19,958 797,562 54,556 11,024 62,003
512,518 36,167 838,737 114,956 - 61,355
38,925 - 175,879 - 11,024 -
551,443 36,167 1,014,616 114,956 11,024 61,355
(76,789) (16,209) (217,054) (60,400) - 648
82,246 - 184,933 71,409 - -
82,246 - 184,933 71,409 - -
5,457 (16,209) (32,121) 11,009 - 648
- 44,787 32,121 874 - 13,565
- 44,787 32,121 874 - 13,565
5,457 28,578 - 11,883 - 14,213

[CONTINUED]



EXHIBIT B-6

PAGE 2 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GRANT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
DRUG VIOLENCE VIOLENCE DEYOUNG 2000
IMPACT AGAINST AGAINST STEP SEWER GRANT
COURT #8 WOMEN WOMEN #2 LINE GRANT TOTALS
REVENUES:
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -

OTHER GOVERNMENTS 205,216 53,696 29,612 246,635 2,016,101
INTEREST 54 3 47 - 4,871
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS - - - - 175

TOTAL REVENUES 205,270 53,699 29,659 246,635 2,021,147

EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 273,621 78,305 39,483 - 2,015,252
AGRICULTURE - - - - -
CONTRACT SERVICES - - - 9,684 9,684
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - 236,951 477,815
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 273,621 78,305 39,483 246,635 2,502,751
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (68,351) (24,606) (9,824) - (481,604)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
OPERATING TRANSFERSIN 68,253 23,438 9,824 - 457,502
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 68,253 23,438 9,824 - 457,502
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING (USES) (98) (1,168) - - (24,102)
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 98 1,168 - - 97,419
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - - - - -
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated) 98 1,168 - - 97,419
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER - - - - -
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 - - - - 73,317




EXHIBIT B-6

PAGE 2 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GRANT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
DRUG VIOLENCE VIOLENCE DEYOUNG 2000
IMPACT AGAINST AGAINST STEP SEWER GRANT
COURT #8 WOMEN WOMEN #2 LINE GRANT TOTALS
REVENUES:
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -

OTHER GOVERNMENTS 205,216 53,696 29,612 246,635 2,016,101
INTEREST 54 3 47 - 4,871
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS - - - - 175

TOTAL REVENUES 205,270 53,699 29,659 246,635 2,021,147

EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 273,621 78,305 39,483 - 2,015,252
AGRICULTURE - - - - -
CONTRACT SERVICES - - - 9,684 9,684
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - 236,951 477,815
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 273,621 78,305 39,483 246,635 2,502,751
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (68,351) (24,606) (9,824) - (481,604)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
OPERATING TRANSFERSIN 68,253 23,438 9,824 - 457,502
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 68,253 23,438 9,824 - 457,502
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING (USES) (98) (1,168) - - (24,102)
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 98 1,168 - - 97,419
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - - - - -
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated) 98 1,168 - - 97,419
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER - - - - -
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 - - - - 73,317




EXHIBIT B-6

PAGE 2 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GRANT FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
DRUG VIOLENCE VIOLENCE DEYOUNG 2000
IMPACT AGAINST AGAINST STEP SEWER GRANT
COURT #8 WOMEN WOMEN #2 LINE GRANT TOTALS
REVENUES:
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -

OTHER GOVERNMENTS 205,216 53,696 29,612 246,635 2,016,101
INTEREST 54 3 47 - 4,871
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS - - - - 175

TOTAL REVENUES 205,270 53,699 29,659 246,635 2,021,147

EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 273,621 78,305 39,483 - 2,015,252
AGRICULTURE - - - - -
CONTRACT SERVICES - - - 9,684 9,684
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - 236,951 477,815
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 273,621 78,305 39,483 246,635 2,502,751
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (68,351) (24,606) (9,824) - (481,604)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
OPERATING TRANSFERSIN 68,253 23,438 9,824 - 457,502
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 68,253 23,438 9,824 - 457,502
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING (USES) (98) (1,168) - - (24,102)
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 98 1,168 - - 97,419
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - - - - -
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated) 98 1,168 - - 97,419
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER - - - - -
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 - - - - 73,317




CAPITAL PROJECTSFUNDS



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capita Projects Funds are used to account for all resources used for the acquisition
or construction of capital facilities except those financed by Enterprise Funds or Internal
Service Funds. Included in this heading are the following individua funds:

M esquite Point Project - Thisfund is used to account for construction of a boat ramp
and park facilities at Mesguite Point.

Highway Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures in the
construction of county roads.

Temporary Housing Project - This fund is used to account for the proceeds from the
State for construction of temporary housing at the Mid-County Jail Facility.

1957 Road Bond Fund - Thisfund is used to account for the purchase of right-of-way
for highway and utility adjustments in conjunction with the Texas State Highway
Department.

Capital Projects Fund - Thisfund isused to account for all other capital projects of the
County for which a separate fund has not been established.

ISTEA Courthouse Preservation Project - This fund is used to account for the
restoration and renovation of the County Courthouse. The source of revenues for this
fund is State grant and County match combined.

Juvenile Detention Center - Thisfund is used to account for the construction costs of a
forty-eight bed Juvenile Detention Center.

Downtown Jail Repairs - Thisfund is used to account for the cost of structural repairs
to the downtown jail facility.

Southeast Texas Entertainment Complex - This fund is used to account for the
construction cost of a multi-facility park.




EXHIBIT C-1

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECTSFUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With compar ative totals for September 30, 1999)

MESQUITE HIGHWAY TEMPORARY
POINT IMPROVEMENT HOUSING 1957 ROAD
PROJECT FUND PROJECT BOND FUND
ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 122,250 2,084,270 346,667 2,221,684
ACCOUNT RECEIVABLE, Net - 103 - -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 954 16,271 2,706 17,344
TOTAL ASSETS $ 123,204 2,100,644 349,373 2,239,028
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTSPAYABLE $ - 2,134 1,890 35,604
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 2,134 1,890 35,604
FUND BALANCES:
UNRESERVED - - - -
RESERVED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 123,204 2,098,510 347,483 2,203,424
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 123,204 2,098,510 347,483 2,203,424

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES $ 123,204 2,100,644 349,373 2,239,028




EXHIBIT C-1

ISTEA SOUTHEAST
CAPITAL COURTHOUSE JUVENILE DOWTOWN TEXAS TOTALS
PROJECTS PRESERVATION DETENTION JAIL ENTERTAINMENT
FUND PROJECT CENTER REPAIRS COMPLEX 2000 1999
1,553,624 233,850 5,377,883 - 55961,540 67,901,768 15,989,428
- - - - - 103 -
12,181 1,776 42,000 - 431,224 524,456 82,304
1,565,805 235,626 5,419,883 - 56,392,764 68,426,327 16,071,732
27,387 18,454 269,392 - 774,589 1,129,450 566,322
- - - - - - 59,491
27,387 18,454 269,392 - 774,589 1,129,450 625,813
- - - - - - (124,625)
1,538,418 217,172 5,150,491 - 55,618,175 67,296,877 15,570,544
1,538,418 217,172 5,150,491 - 55,618,175 67,296,877 15,445,919
1,565,805 235,626 5,419,883 - 56,302,764 68,426,327 16,071,732




EXHIBIT C-2

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECTSFUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparative totals for fiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

MESQUITE HIGHWAY TEMPORARY
POINT IMPROVEMENT HOUSING 1957 ROAD
PROJECT FUND PROJECT BOND FUND
REVENUES:
GRANTS AND RECEIPTS -
OTHER GOVERNMENTS $ - 6,765 - -
INTEREST 8,475 113,988 18,772 117,301
TOTAL REVENUES 8,475 120,753 18,772 117,301
EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY 150,609 2,563 1,890 130,391
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 150,609 2,563 1,890 130,391
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (142,134) 118,190 16,882 (13,090)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
PROCEEDS FOR BOND SALE - - - -
OPERATING TRANSFERSIN - - - -
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - - -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER FINANCING (USES) (142,134) 118,190 16,882 (13,090)
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 265,338 1,980,320 330,601 2,216,514

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 123,204 2,098,510 347,483 2,203,424




EXHIBIT C-2

ISTEA SOUTHEAST
CAPITAL COURTHOUSE JUVENILE DOWNTOWN TEXAS TOTALS
PROJECTS PRESERVATION DETENTION JAIL ENTERTAINMENT
FUND PROJECT CENTER REPAIRS COMPLEX 2000 1999
- 243,625 - - - 250,390 605,882
215,899 7,707 316,140 - 2,020,056 2,818,338 676,104
215,899 251,332 316,140 - 2,020,056 3,068,728 1,281,986
893,076 1,290,081 1,094,620 77,822 3,550,586 7,191,638 2,493,883
893,076 1,290,081 1,094,620 77,822 3,550,586 7,191,638 2,493,883
(677,177) (1,038,749) (778,480) (77,822) (1530530)  (4,122,910) (1,211,897
- - - - 53,795,969 53,795,969 5,860,270
2,177,899 1,144,957 - 7,522 3,477,361 6,807,739 5,128,682
(4,629,840) - - - - (4,629,840)  (4,353,205)
(2,451,941) 1,144,957 - 7,522 57,273,330 55,973,868 6,635,747
(3,129,118) 106,208 (778,480) (70,300) 55,742,800 51,850,958 5,423,850
4,667,536 110964 5928971 70,300 (124,625) 15,445,919 10,022,069
1,538,418 217172  5150,491 - 55,618,175 67,296,877 15,445,919




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for each specific long-term debt.
These funds account for the accumulation of resources and subsequent
disbursement of such resources to pay principal, interest, and commissions.
Included in this heading are the following individual funds:

1990 Jail Construction Bond - Thisfund is used to account for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the $10,300,000 1990 Public Building Bonds.

1993 Bond Refunding - This fund is used to account for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the $19,000,000 1993 Bond Refunding.

1993 Certificates of Obligation - Thisfund is used to account for the revenues
and expenditures associated with the $6,000,000 1993 Certificates of Obligation.

1995 L ong-Term Construction Notes- Thisfund is used to account for the
revenues and expenditures associated with the $2,050,000 1995 Tax Anticipation
Notes.

1999 Certificates of Obligation - Thisfund is used to account for the revenues
and expenditures associated with the $6,000,000 1999 Certificates of Obligation.

2000 Certificates of Obligation - This fund is used to account for the revenues
and expenditures associated with the $55,000,000 2000 Certificates of Obligation.




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor September 30, 1999)

ASSETS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net
INTEREST RECEIVABLE

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

DEFERRED REVENUES:
DELINQUENT TAXES
PENALTY AND INTEREST

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES:
UNRESERVED
RESERVED FOR DEBT SERVICE
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

1990
JAIL
CONSTRUCTION
BOND

EXHIBIT D-1

1993
BOND
REFUNDING

1,356,011
80,928
51,651
10,586
17,023

1,516,199

72,956
51,651

124,607

1,391,592

1,391,592

1,516,199




EXHIBIT D-1 EXHIBIT D-1
1993 1995 1999 2000
CERTIFICATES LONG-TERM CERTIFICATES  CERTIFICATES TOTALS
OF CONSTRUCTION OF OF
OBLIGATION NOTES OBLIGATION OBLIGATION 2000 1999
423,348 - 1,197 514,041 2,294,597 1,908,220
27,409 - 15,911 92,079 216,327 195,883
17,493 - 10,155 58,768 138,067 126,315
3,305 - - 4,001 17,982 9,869
3,617 - 141 11,020 31,801 2,230
475,172 - 27,404 679,999 2,698,774 2,242,517
24,709 - 14,344 92,079 204,088 185,465
17,493 - 10,155 58,768 138,067 126,315
- - - - - 43,188
42,202 - 24,499 150,847 342,155 354,968
) . ) ; (43,188)
432,970 - 2,905 529,152 2,356,619 1,930,737
432,970 - 2,905 529,152 2,356,619 1,887,549
475,172 - 27,404 679,999 2,698,774 2,242,517




EXHIBIT D-2

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparative totals for fiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

1990
JAIL 1993
CONSTRUCTION BOND
BOND REFUNDING
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 656,179 1,417,067
INTEREST 16,271 95,883
TOTAL REVENUES 672,450 1,512,950
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 650,000 920,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 66,757 494,974
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 716,757 1,414,974
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (44,307) 97,976
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 84,855 1,293,616
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER (40,548) -

FUND BALANCES, SEPFTEMBER 30 $ - 1,391,592




EXHIBIT D-2

1993 1995 1999 2000
CERTIFICATES LONG-TERM CERTIFICATES CERTIFICATES TOTALS
OF CONSTRUCTION OF OF
OBLIGATION NOTES OBLIGATION OBLIGATION 2000 1999
473,892 923,613 269,600 - 3,740,351 3,228,808
29,293 26,439 1,274 341,923 511,083 190,925
503,185 950,052 270,874 341,923 4,251,434 3,419,733
200,000 900,000 - - 2,670,000 2,405,000
278,237 37,615 234,781 - 1,112,364 1,067,213
478,237 937,615 234,781 - 3,782,364 3,472,213
24,948 12,437 36,093 341,923 469,070 (52,480)
408,022 144,244 (43,188) - 1,887,549 1,940,029
- (156,681) 10,000 187,229 - -
432,970 - 2,905 529,152 2,356,619 1,887,549




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With compar ative totals for September 30, 1999)

EXHIBIT D-3

2000 1999
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 3,766,830 3,740,351 (26,479) 3,228,808
INTEREST - 511,083 511,083 190,925
TOTAL REVENUES 3,766,830 4,251,434 484,604 3,419,733
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 2,670,000 2,670,000 - 2,405,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,115,483 1,112,364 3,119 1,067,213
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,785,483 3,782,364 3,119 3,472,213
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (18,653) 469,070 487,723 (52,480)




1990 JAIL CONSTRUCTION BOND
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $

1993 BOND REFUNDING

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES

EXHIBIT D-4

PAGE 1 OF 3
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)
BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)
2000 1999
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
670,387 656,179 (14,208) 324,527
- 16,271 16,271 9,764
670,387 672,450 2,063 334,291
650,000 650,000 - 250,000
67,000 66,757 243 91,353
717,000 716,757 243 341,353
(46,613) (44,307) 2,306 (7,062)
1,409,172 1,417,067 7,895 1,761,833
- 95,883 95,883 98,199
1,409,172 1,512,950 103,778 1,860,032
920,000 920,000 - 1,305,000
496,015 494,974 1,041 547,163
1,416,015 1,414,974 1,041 1,852,163
(6,843) 97,976 104,819 7,869

OVER EXPENDITURES $

(CONTINUED)



EXHIBIT D-4

PAGE 20OF 3
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)
BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)
2000 1999
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
1993 CERTIFICATESOF OBLIGATION
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 477,257 473,892 (3,365) 364,532
INTEREST - 29,293 29,293 25,144
TOTAL REVENUES 477,257 503,185 25,928 389,676
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 200,000 200,000 - 100,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 279,436 278,237 1,199 281,952
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 479,436 478,237 1,199 381,952
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (2,179) 24,948 27,127 7,724
1995 L ONG-TERM CONSTRUCTION NOTES
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 933,797 923,613 (10,184) 777,916
INTEREST - 26,439 26,439 22,098
TOTAL REVENUES 933,797 950,052 16,255 800,014
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 900,000 900,000 - 750,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 38,251 37,615 636 67,837
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 938,251 937,615 636 817,837
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (4,454) 12,437 16,891 (17,823)

(CONTINUED)



1990 JAIL CONSTRUCTION BOND
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $

1993 BOND REFUNDING

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES

EXHIBIT D-4

PAGE 1 OF 3
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)
BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)
2000 1999
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
670,387 656,179 (14,208) 324,527
- 16,271 16,271 9,764
670,387 672,450 2,063 334,291
650,000 650,000 - 250,000
67,000 66,757 243 91,353
717,000 716,757 243 341,353
(46,613) (44,307) 2,306 (7,062)
1,409,172 1,417,067 7,895 1,761,833
- 95,883 95,883 98,199
1,409,172 1,512,950 103,778 1,860,032
920,000 920,000 - 1,305,000
496,015 494,974 1,041 547,163
1,416,015 1,414,974 1,041 1,852,163
(6,843) 97,976 104,819 7,869

OVER EXPENDITURES $

(CONTINUED)



EXHIBIT D-4
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)
BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)
2000 1999
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
1993 CERTIFICATESOF OBLIGATION
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 477,257 473,892 (3,365) 364,532
INTEREST - 29,293 29,293 25,144
TOTAL REVENUES 477,257 503,185 25,928 389,676
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 200,000 200,000 - 100,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 279,436 278,237 1,199 281,952
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 479,436 478,237 1,199 381,952
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (2,179) 24,948 27,127 7,724
1995 L ONG-TERM CONSTRUCTION NOTES
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 933,797 923,613 (10,184) 777,916
INTEREST - 26,439 26,439 22,098
TOTAL REVENUES 933,797 950,052 16,255 800,014
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 900,000 900,000 - 750,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 38,251 37,615 636 67,837
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 938,251 937,615 636 817,837
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (4,454) 12,437 16,891 (17,823)

(CONTINUED)



EXHIBIT D-4

1999 CERTIFICATESOF OBLIGATION

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:

DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL

INTEREST AND COMMISSION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

2000 CERTIFICATESOF OBLIGATION

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:

DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL

EXCESS OF REVENUES

PAGE 30F 3
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)
BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)
2000 1999
FAVORABLE

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL

$ 276,217 269,600 (6,617) -
- 1,274 1,274 35,720
276,217 270,874 (5,343 35,720
234,781 234,781 - 78,908
234,781 234,781 - 78,908
$ 41,436 36,093 (5,343 (43,188)

$ - - - -

- 341,923 341,923 -

- 341,923 341,923 -

INTEREST AND COMMISSION - - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - - - -

$ - 341,923 341,923 -

OVER EXPENDITURES




EXHIBIT D-4

PAGE 20OF 3
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)
BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)
2000 1999
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
1993 CERTIFICATESOF OBLIGATION
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 477,257 473,892 (3,365) 364,532
INTEREST - 29,293 29,293 25,144
TOTAL REVENUES 477,257 503,185 25,928 389,676
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 200,000 200,000 - 100,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 279,436 278,237 1,199 281,952
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 479,436 478,237 1,199 381,952
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (2,179) 24,948 27,127 7,724
1995 L ONG-TERM CONSTRUCTION NOTES
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 933,797 923,613 (10,184) 777,916
INTEREST - 26,439 26,439 22,098
TOTAL REVENUES 933,797 950,052 16,255 800,014
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL 900,000 900,000 - 750,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 38,251 37,615 636 67,837
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 938,251 937,615 636 817,837
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (4,454) 12,437 16,891 (17,823)

(CONTINUED)
EXHIBIT D-4



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

ACTUAL AND BUDGET (GAAP)
BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

2000

PAGE 30OF 3

1999

1999 CERTIFICATESOF OBLIGATION

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:

DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL

INTEREST AND COMMISSION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

2000 CERTIFICATESOF OBLIGATION

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:

DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL

EXCESS OF REVENUES

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
$ 276,217 269,600 (6,617) -
- 1,274 1,274 35,720
276,217 270,874 (5,343) 35,720
234,781 234,781 - 78,908
234,781 234,781 - 78,908
$ 41,436 36,093 (5,343) (43,188)
$ - _ - -
- 341,923 341,923 -
- 341,923 341,923 -
INTEREST AND COMMISSION - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - - - -
$ - 341,923 341,923 -

OVER EXPENDITURES




ENTERPRISE FUND



ENTERPRISE FUND

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for certain activities that are financed and
operated inamanner similar to private business enterpriseswhere theintent isthat the
costs of providing goods or servicesto the genera public on acontinuing basis should
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Included in thisheading is
the following individual fund:

Airport Enterprise Fund - This fund is used to account for the operation of the
Southeast Texas Regional Airport.




EXHIBIT E-1

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

2000 1999
ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ - 479,695
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 235,054 224,709
INTEREST RECEIVABLE - 1,403
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 13,015 13,015
PREPAID ITEMS 683 683
INVENTORY, At Cost 43,287 37,165
TOTAL ASSETS 292,039 756,670
FIXED ASSETS
LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT 39,206,198 36,336,159
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (21,185,014)  (20,322,330)
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 246,713 2,736,645
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 18,267,897 18,750,474
TOTAL ASSETS $ 18559936 19,507,144
LIABILITIESAND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTSPAYABLE $ 175,754 249,568
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 483,885 -
COMPENSATED ABSENCES 21,187 96,143
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 28,023 28,619
TOTAL LIABILITIES 708,849 374,330
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
COMPENSATED ABSENCES 210,874 115,834
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 210,874 115,834
TOTAL LIABILITIES 919,723 490,164
EQUITY:
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 14,232,508 14,979,692
RETAINED EARNINGS 3,407,705 4,037,288
TOTAL EQUITY 17,640,213 19,016,980

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 18,559,936 19,507,144




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGESIN FUND EQUITY
FOR THE FISCAL YEARSENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

OPERATING REVENUES:

FEES:
FIELD USAGE
FLOWAGE
ADVERTISING DISPLAYS

SALES, RENTALS AND SERVICES:
AVIATION FUEL SALES
RENTAL CAR CONTRACTS
HANGER RENTAL
OFFICE SPACE RENTAL
PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE
LAND SPACE
MISCELLANEOUS

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSES:
AVIATION FUEL
PERSONAL SERVICES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS
UTILITIES
DEPRECIATION
MISCELLANEOUS

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING LOSS
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INTEREST
(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF EQUIPMENT
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

NET LOSS
ADD: DEPRECIATION ON CONTRIBUTED ASSETS

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RETAINED EARNINGS
RETAINED EARNINGS, OCTOBER 1

RETAINED EARNINGS, SEPTEMBER 30
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL, OCTOBER 1

ADD: CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

LESS: DEPRECIATION ON CONTRIBUTED ASSETS
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL, SEPTEMBER 30

FUND EQUITY, SEPTEMBER 30

EXHIBIT E-2

2000 1999
180,841 202,711
47,848 58,061
21,000 21,000
827,350 726,063
296,075 310,250
125,925 149,370
311,289 352,265
294,850 294,682
44,377 49,759
4,945 23,642
2,154,500 2,277,803
554,937 388,932
1,127,893 1,031,339
377,795 353,422
78,833 90,496
153,937 174,936
188,607 160,477
951,201 855,042
103,001 80,542
3,536,384 3,135,186
(1,381,884) (857,383)
6,750 22,854
(1,633) -
5,117 22,854
(1,376,767) (834,529)
747,184 670,911
(629,583) (163,618)
4,037,288 4,200,906
3,407,705 4,037,288
14,979,692 13,723,104
- 1,927,499
(747,184) (670,911)
14,232,508 14,979,692
17,640,213 19,016,980




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTSOF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARSENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING LOSS

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET OPERATING LOSS
DEPRECIATION
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
DECREASE IN DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL

ENTITIES

DECREASE IN PREPAID ITEMS
(INCREASE) IN INVENTORY
(DECREASE) IN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
INCREASE IN DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OTHER LIABILITIES
(DECREASE) IN CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
PAYMENTS FOR CAPITAL ACQUISITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION
RECEIPTS FROM GRANTS
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
RECEIPTS OF INTEREST

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT END OF YEAR

EXHIBIT E-3

2000 1999

$ (1,381,884) (857,383)
951,291 855,042
(10,345) 55,434

- 486,868

- 54

(6,122) (12,712)
(73,814) (48,799)

483,885 -

20,084 (17,008)

(596) (5,060)
1,364,383 1,313,819
(17,501) 456,436
(470,347)  (3,124,029)

- 1,927,499

(470,347)  (1,196,530)
8,153 24,014

8,153 24,014
(479,695) (716,080)
479,695 1,195,775

$ - 479,695




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Thelnterna Service Fundsare used to account for the financing of goods and services
provided by one department or agency to other agencies of the government and to
other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. Included in this heading are
the following individual funds.

Health I nsurance Fund - Thisfund is used to account for the County-s group health
insurance program which includes comprehensive major medical and dental care.

Liability Insurance Fund - Thisfund is used to account for the County=s contribution
and payment for liability claims.

Workers Compensation Fund - This fund is used to account for the County-s
contribution and payment for workers compensation claims.




EXHIBIT F-1

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparative totals for September 30, 1999)

HEALTH LIABILITY WORKERS TOTALS
INSURANCE INSURANCE COMPENSATION
FUND FUND FUND 2000 1999
ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 3,604,830 401,714 2,985,722 6,992,266 6,950,520
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 906,678 - 31,727 938,405 240,270
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 27,339 3,136 22,915 53,390 35,647
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 6,332 - - 6,332 36,192
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,545,179 404,850 3,040,364 7,990,393 7,262,629
LIABILITIESAND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
CLAIMSLIABILITY $ 1,433,185 271,751 162,306 1,867,242 2,763,262
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,433,185 271,751 162,306 1,867,242 2,763,262
EQUITY:
RETAINED EARNINGS 3,111,994 133,099 2,878,058 6,123,151 4,499,367
TOTAL EQUITY 3,111,994 133,099 2,878,058 6,123,151 4,499,367

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 4545179 404,850 3,040,364 7,990,393 7,262,629




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGESIN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

(With comparative totals for thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

OPERATING REVENUES:
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS AND REFUNDS
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES:
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
MISCELLANEOUS
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
INTEREST

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

HEALTH
INSURANCE
FUND

LIABILITY
INSURANCE
FUND

WORKERS
COMPENSATION
FUND

EXHIBIT F-2

TOTALS

2000

1999

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 1,491,699

TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND

NET INCOME (LOSS)

RETAINED EARNINGS, OCTOBER 1

RETAINED EARNINGS, SEPTEMBER 30

$ 1,248,527 - - 1,248,527 1,069,369
7,455,411 86,231 420,639 7,962,281 7,385,086
903,904 - - 903,904 2,937
9,607,842 86,231 420,639 10,114,712 8,457,392
8,289,611 39,395 546,740 8,875,746 9,027,979
985 - - 985 2,858
8,290,596 39,395 546,740 8,876,731 9,030,837
1,317,246 46,836 (126,101) 1,237,981 (573,445
174,453 19,177 162,173 355,803 367,049
174,453 19,177 162,173 355,803 367,049
66,013 36,072 1,593,784 (206,396)

- 30,000 - 30,000 30,000

1,491,699 96,013 36,072 1,623,784 (176,396)
1,620,295 37,086 2,841,986 4,499,367 4,675,763

$ 3,111,994 133,099 2,878,058 6,123,151 4,499,367




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotalsfor thefiscal year ended September 30, 1999)

CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(INCREASE) DECREASE IN:
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
RESTRICTED ASSETS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN:
CLAIMSLIABILITY
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWSFROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
RECEIPTS OF INTEREST

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

EXHIBIT F-3

HEALTH LIABILITY WORKERS TOTALS
INSURANCE INSURANCE COMPENSATION
FUND FUND FUND 2000 1999
$ 1,317,246 46,836 (126,101) 1,237,081 (573,445)
(666,408) - (31,727) (698,135) (7,801)
- - - - 195,000
29,860 - - 29,860 59,619
- - - - 123,705
(890,131) 13,572 (19,461) (896,020) (203,705)
- - - - (33,844)
(1,526,679) 13,572 (51,188) (1,564,295 132,974
(209,433) 60,408 (177,289) (326,314) (440,471)
- 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
- 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
165,937 17,560 154,563 338,060 360,732
165,937 17,560 154,563 338,060 360,732
(43,496) 107,968 (22,726) 41,746 (49,739)
3,648,326 293,746 3008448 6,950,520 7,000,259
$ 3,604,830 401,714 2085722 6,992,266 6,950,520




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
HEALTH INSURANCE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
INTEREST RECEIVABLE
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
CLAIMSLIABILITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY:
RETAINED EARNINGS

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

EXHIBIT F-4

2000 1999
3,604,830 3,648,326
906,678 240,270
27,339 18,823
6,332 36,192
4,545,179 3,943,611
1,433,185 2,323,316
1,433,185 2,323,316
3,111,994 1,620,295
3,111,994 1,620,295
4,545,179 3,943,611




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
HEALTH INSURANCE FUND

EXHIBIT F-5

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGESIN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

OPERATING REVENUES:
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS AND REFUNDS

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES:
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
MISCELLANEOUS
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
INTEREST

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
NET INCOME (LOSS)
RETAINED EARNINGS, OCTOBER 1

RETAINED EARNINGS, SEPTEMBER 30

2000 1999
1,248,527 1,069,369
7,455,411 6,990,083

903,904 2,937
9,607,842 8,062,389
8,289,611 8,659,090

985 2,858
8,290,596 8,661,948
1,317,246 (599,559)

174,453 193,772

174,453 193,772
1,491,699 (405,787)
1,620,295 2,026,082
3,111,994 1,620,295




EXHIBIT F-6

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
HEALTH INSURANCE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTSOF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARSENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

2000 1999
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 1,317,246 (599,559)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET
OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
(INCREASE) IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (666,408) (7,801)
DECREASE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL
ENTITIES 29,860 59,619
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CLAIMS LIABILITY (890,131) 642,999
(DECREASE) IN DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - (33,844)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS (1,526,679) 660,973
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (209,433) 61,414
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
RECEIPTS OF INTEREST 165,937 188,991
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 165,937 188,991
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (43,496) 250,405
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,648,326 3,397,021

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 3,604,830 3,648,326




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEE

TS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

EXHIBIT F-7

2000 1999
ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 401,714 293,746
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 3,136 1,519
TOTAL ASSETS $ 404,850 295,265
LIABILITIESAND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
CLAIMSLIABILITY $ 271,751 258,179
TOTAL LIABILITIES 271,751 258,179
EQUITY:
RETAINED EARNINGS 133,099 37,086
TOTAL EQUITY 133,099 37,086
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 404,850 295,265




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGESIN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

OPERATING REVENUES:
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

OPERATING EXPENSES:
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
INTEREST

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

TRANSFER FROM OTHER FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND

NET INCOME
RETAINED EARNINGS, OCTOBER 1

RETAINED EARNINGS, SEPTEMBER 30

EXHIBIT F-8

2000 1999
86,231 38,830
39,395 60,483
39,395 60,483
46,836 (21,653)
19,177 10,706
19,177 10,706
66,013 (10,947)
30,000 30,000
96,013 19,053
37,086 18,033

133,009 37,086




EXHIBIT F-9

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

2000 1999
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 46,836 (21,653)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET
OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
DECREASE IN DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - 195,000
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CLAIMSLIABILITY 13,572 (156,821)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 13,572 38,179
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 60,408 16,526
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 30,000 30,000
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 30,000 30,000
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:

RECEIPTS OF INTEREST 17,560 10,827
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 17,560 10,827
NET INCREASE IN CASH 107,968 57,353
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 293,746 236,393

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 401,714 293,746




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
INTEREST RECEIVABLE

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

EXHIBIT F-10

LIABILITIES:
CLAIMSLIABILITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY:
RETAINED EARNINGS

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

2000 1999
2,985,722 3,008,448
31,727 -

22,915 15,305
3,040,364 3,023,753
162,306 181,767
162,306 181,767
2,878,058 2,841,986
2,878,058 2,841,986
3,040,364 3,023,753




EXHIBIT F-11

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

2000 1999

OPERATING REVENUES:
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS $ 420,639 356,173
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 420,639 356,173

OPERATING EXPENSES:
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 546,740 308,406
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 546,740 308,406
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (126,101) 47,767

NONOPERATING REVENUES:

INTEREST 162,173 162,571
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 162,173 162,571
NET INCOME 36,072 210,338
RETAINED EARNINGS, OCTOBER 1 2,841,986 2,631,648

RETAINED EARNINGS, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 2,878,058 2,841,986




EXHIBIT F-12

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

2000 1999
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ (126,101 47,767
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET
OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(INCREASE) IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (31,727) -
DECREASE IN RESTRICTED ASSETS - 123,705
(DECREASE) IN CLAIMSLIABILITY (19,461) (689,883)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS (51,188) (566,178)
NET CASH (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (177,289) (518,411)
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:

RECEIPTS OF INTEREST 154,563 160,914
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 154,563 160,914
NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,726) (357,497)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,008,448 3,365,945

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT END OF YEAR $ 2,985,722 3,008,448




AGENCY FUNDS



AGENCY FUNDS

The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as a trustee or
agent for individuals, private organizations and other units of government. Such
funds are operated by carrying out specific terms of trust indentures, ordinances, grant
requirements or other governing regulations. Included in this heading are the
following individua funds:

Treasurer Maintained Fund - This fund is used to account for various monies
deposited with the County Treasurer for distribution to other individuals and/or
government entities.

County Clerk Fund - Thisfund isused to account for the collection and distribution
of money by the Clerk of the County Courts.

District Clerk Fund - Thisfund is used to account for the collection and distribution
of the money by the Clerk of the District Courts.

Payroll Fund - Thisfund is used to account for the County:=s payroll checks and the
related disbursements made from monieswithheld from individual s, and the County-s
payment of payroll related taxes and deductions.

Sheriffzs Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution of
money by the Sheriff.

Justice of the Peace Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money by the Justices of the Peace.

Constables Fund - Thisfund is used to account for the collection and distribution of
money by the Constables.

Tax Assessor/Collector Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money by the Tax Assessor/Collector.

District Attorney=s Seizure Fund - Thisfund is used to account for the seizure and
subsequent distribution of seized personal property.




Nar cotics Task For ce Seizur e Fund - Thisfund isused to account for the seized and
forfeited personal property of personsarrested in connection with the Jefferson County
Narcotics Task Force.

Adult Probation Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money collected by the Community Supervision Department.

Juvenile Probation Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money collected by the Juvenile Probation Department.

Flexible Spending - Thisfund is used to account for the collection and distribution of
money collected under the Internal Revenue Code Section 125 benefit plan.

Restitution Center #1 Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money collected by the Restitution Center #1.

Restitution Center #2 Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money collected by the Restitution Center #2.

Downtown Jail Lease Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money collected from the Downtown Lease Agreement.




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

AGENCY FUNDS

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

ASSETS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORY

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTSPAYABLE

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
OTHER PAYABLES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EXHIBIT G-1

2000 1999
20,668,002 18,528,929
9,078 9,433
105,557 74,706
1,192,970 1,201,129

55,277 -

22,030,884 19,814,197
15,877,464 15,078,703
2,516,758 1,784,319
3,165,635 2,580,638
471,027 370,537
22,030,884 19,814,197




ASSETS- OCTOBER 1, 1999
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

TOTAL

ADDITIONS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORY

TOTAL

DELETIONS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORY

TOTAL

ASSETS - SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORY

TOTAL ASSETS

EXHIBIT G-2

PAGE 1 OF 6
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN ASSETSAND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 2000
(With comparative totalsfor September 30, 1999)
TREASURER COUNTY DISTRICT JUSTICE OF
MAINTAINED CLERK CLERK PAYROLL SHERIFF'S THE PEACE
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
$ 261,750 837,238 12,189,505 - 414,402 258,787
370 - - - - -
74,706 - - - - -
- - 40,220 - - -
336,826 837,238 12,229,725 - 414,402 258,787
2,073,201 4,017,645 57,967,482 64,211,880 5,428,086 3,351,934
385 - - - - -
170,835 - - - - -
- - 98,547 - - -
- - - - 55,277 -
2,244,421 4,017,645 58,066,029 64,211,880 5,483,363 3,351,934
2,057,962 3,923,042 57,128,841 64,209,734 5,255,863 3,361,337
740 - - - - -
139,984 - - - - -
- - 98,547 - - -
2,198,686 3,923,042 57,227,388 64,209,734 5,255,863 3,361,337
276,989 931,841 13,028,146 2,146 586,625 249,384
15 - - - - -
105,557 - - - - -
- - 40,220 - - -
- - - - 55,277 -
$ 382,561 931,841 13,068,366 2,146 641,902 249,384




EXHIBIT G-2

PAGE 2 OF 6
TAX ASSESSOR DISTRICT NARCOTICS ADULT JUVENILE FLEXIBLE
CONSTABLES COLLECTOR ATTORNEY'S TASK FORCE PROBATION PROBATION SPENDING
FUND FUND SEIZURE FUND SEIZURE FUND FUND FUND FUND
7,124 3271523 79,211 330,864 810,942 2071 -
- 9,063 - - - - -
- - 6,728 - - - -
7,124 3,280,586 85,939 330,864 810,942 2971 -
195,086 341,959,619 174,629 784,694 4,409,787 63,147 224,448
- 338,283,345 - - - - -
- - 6,728 - - - -
195,086 680,242,964 181,357 784,694 4,400,787 63,147 204,448
195,335 340,935,320 132,556 864,276 4,397,903 63,095 200,345
- 338,283,345 - - - - -
- - 13,456 - - - -
195,335 679,218,665 146,012 864,276 4,397,903 63,095 200,345
6,875 4,295,822 121,284 251,282 822,826 3,023 24,103
- 9,063 - - - - -
6,875 4,304,885 121,284 251,282 822,826 3,023 24,103




ASSETS- OCTOBER 1, 1999
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

TOTAL

ADDITIONS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORY

TOTAL

DELETIONS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORY

TOTAL

ASSETS - SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
INVENTORY

EXHIBIT G-2

PAGE 3 OF 6
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN ASSETSAND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotals for September 30, 1999)
RESTITUTION RESTITUTION DOWNTOWN
CENTER #1 CENTER #2 JAIL LEASE TOTAL
FUND FUND FUND 2000 1999

18,590 46,022 - 18,528,929 19,942,918
- - - 9,433 9,193
- - - 74,706 70,688
- - 1,154,181 1,201,129 1,245,812
18,590 46,022 1,154,181 19,814,197 21,268,611
497,985 724,881 7,395,793 493,480,297 480,272,008
- - - 338,283,730 334,111,417
- - - 170,835 162,527
- - 2,306,931 2,412,206 3,022,864

- - - 55,277 -
497,985 724,881 9,702,724 834,402,345 817,568,816
494,088 725,734 7,395,793 491,341,224 481,685,997
- - - 338,284,085 334,111,177
- - - 139,984 158,509
- - 2,308,362 2,420,365 3,067,547
494,088 725,734 9,704,155 832,185,658 819,023,230
22,487 45,169 - 20,668,002 18,528,929
- - - 9,078 9,433
- - - 105,557 74,706
- - 1,152,750 1,192,970 1,201,129

- - - 55,277 -
22,487 45,169 1,152,750 22,030,884 19,814,197

TOTAL ASSETS




EXHIBIT G-2

PAGE 4 OF 6
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN ASSETSAND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 2000
(With comparative totalsfor September 30, 1999)
TREASURER COUNTY DISTRICT JUSTICE OF
MAINTAINED CLERK CLERK PAYROLL SHERIFF'S THE PEACE
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
LIABILITIES- OCTOBER 1, 1999
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 132,122 322,982 12,123,850 - 289,983 68,621
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 15,952 132,893 105,800 - 123,233 185,313
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 188,752 10,826 75 - 1,186 4853
OTHER PAYABLES - 370,537 - - - -
TOTAL 336,826 837,238 12,229,725 - 414,402 258,787
ADDITIONS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 184,484 853,049 55,594,235 97,649,546 3,784,002 619,496
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 10,592 1,752,937 1,795,021 - 1,478,164 1,828,737
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1,970,107 110,379 225,673 - 199,498 907,993
OTHER PAYABLES - 1,303,590 - - - -
TOTAL 2,165,183 4,019,955 57,614,929 97,649,546 5,461,664 3,356,226
DELETIONS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 190,348 838,800 54,748,126 97,647,400 3,640,088 668,052
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 26,034 1,762,247 1,802,414 - 1,393,392 1,784,731
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1,903,066 121,205 225,748 - 200,684 912,846
OTHER PAYABLES - 1,203,100 - - - -
TOTAL 2,119,448 3,925,352 56,776,288 97,647,400 5,234,164 3,365,629
LIABILITIES- SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 126,258 337,231 12,969,959 2,146 433,897 20,065
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 510 123,583 98,407 - 208,005 229,319
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 255,793 - - - - -
OTHER PAYABLES - 471,027 - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$ 382,561 931,841 13,068,366 2,146 641,902 249,384




EXHIBIT G-2

PAGE 5OF 6
TAX ASSESSOR DISTRICT NARCOTICS ADULT JUVENILE FLEXIBLE
CONSTABLES COLLECTOR ATTORNEY'S TASK FORCE PROBATION PROBATION SPENDING
FUND FUND SEIZURE FUND SEIZURE FUND FUND FUND FUND
517 571,869 85,939 330,864 666,509 272 -
6,607 333,771 - - 144,433 2,699 -
- 2,374,946 - - - - -
7,124 3,280,586 85,939 330,864 810,942 2071 -
89,757 3,606,517 101,390 784,694 4,254,427 60,431 224,448
105,329 60,766,545 - - 155,360 2716 -
- 277,706,371 - - - - -
195,086 342,079,433 101,390 784,694 4,400,787 63,147 204,448
90,274 3,737,617 66,045 864,276 4253471 60,396 200,345
105,061 60,146,042 - - 144,432 2,699 -
- 277,171,475 - - - - -
195,335 341,055,134 66,045 864,276 4,397,903 63,095 200,345
- 440,769 121,284 251,282 667,465 307 24,103
6,875 954,274 - - 155,361 2716 -
- 2,909,842 - - . ; .
6,875 4,304,885 121,284 251,282 822,826 3,023 24,103

[CONTINUED)]



EXHIBIT G-2

PAGE 6 OF 6
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN ASSETSAND LIABILITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(With comparativetotals for September 30, 1999)
RESTITUTION RESTITUTION DOWNTOWN
CENTER #1 CENTER #2 JAIL LEASE TOTAL
FUND FUND FUND 2000 1999
LIABILITIES- OCTOBER 1, 1999
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 3,825 22,609 458,741 15,078,703 16,826,888
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 14,765 23413 695,440 1,784,319 1,725,004
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - 2,580,638 2,351,792
OTHER PAYABLES - - - 370,537 364,927
TOTAL 18,590 46,022 1,154,181 19,814,197 21,268,611
ADDITIONS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 514,695 745,127 910,248 169,976,546 132,375,920
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 66,497 79,510 5,803 68,047,211 62,702,079
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - 281,120,021 282,303,215
OTHER PAYABLES - - - 1,303,590 1,422,776
TOTAL 581,192 824,637 916,051 520,447,368 478,803,990
DELETIONS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 512,743 742,322 917,482 169,177,785 134,124,105
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 64,552 83,168 - 67,314,772 62,642,764
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - 280,535,024 282,074,369
OTHER PAYABLES - - - 1,203,100 1,417,166
TOTAL 577,295 825,490 917,482 518,230,681 480,258,404
LIABILITIES- SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5,777 25,414 451,507 15,877,464 15,078,703
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 16,710 19,755 701,243 2,516,758 1,784,319
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - 3,165,635 2,580,638
OTHER PAYABLES - - - 471,027 370,537
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 22,487 45,169 1,152,750 22,030,884 19,814,197




GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

ACCOUNT GROUP



GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

This group of accounts is used to account for tangible assets of the County having a
useful life longer than one year and monetary value large enough to warrant
maintaining custodial records on the property.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF GENERAL

FIXED ASSETSBY SOURCE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

LAND

BUILDINGS

IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BUILDINGS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

ROADS, BRIDGES, AND RIGHT-OF-WAY
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

INVESTMENTSIN GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS FROM:

CURRENT REVENUES
BOND ISSUES

STATE GRANTS
FEDERAL GRANTS

GIFTS AND FORFEITURES

TOTAL INVESTMENTSIN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

EXHIBIT H-1

2000 1999
6,207,106 6,207,106
52,025,868 51,298,541
14,794,437 14,471,267
22,498,158 20,955,435
17,060,445 16,972,506
9,370,247 2,779,441
121,956,261 112,684,296
115,780,137 106,531,303
3,387,128 3,387,128
2,493,188 2,467,205
247,928 250,580
47,880 48,080
121,956,261 112,684,296




EXHIBIT H-2

PAGE 1 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS- BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
IMPROVEMENTS PROPERTY ROADS,
OTHER THAN AND BRIDGESAND
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY LAND BUILDINGS BUILDINGS EQUIPMENT RIGHT-OF-WAY TOTAL
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
COUNTY AUDITOR $ - - - 91,547 - 91,547
COUNTY CLERK - - - 1,461,729 - 1,461,729
COUNTY ENGINEER - - 1,228 244,750 - 245,978
COUNTY JUDGE - - - 54,961 - 54,961
COUNTY TREASURER - - - 28,918 - 28,918
FEE COLLECTIONS - - - 4,337 - 4,337
GENERAL SERVICES - 2,080 532 194,829 - 197,441
HISTORICAL COMMISSION - - - 14,835 - 14,835
HUMAN RESOURCES - - - 27,951 - 27,951
LIBRARY - - - 97,631 - 97,631
MAINTENANCE -
BEAUMONT 1,922,658 27,303,424 12,691,896 640,982 - 42,558,960
MID-COUNTY - 178,750 81,117 30,003 - 289,870
PORT ARTHUR 413,089 2,862,187 439,312 121,524 - 3,836,112
MIS - DATA PROCESSING - - 2,524 569,174 - 571,698
PRINTING - - 504 66,375 - 66,879
PURCHASING - - 17,106 78,987 - 96,093
RISK MANAGEMENT - - 226 31,424 - 31,650
SERVICE CENTER - BEAUMONT 113,314 820,755 447,102 179,824 - 1,560,995
TAX ASSESSOR/COLLECTOR - 246,785 - 489,391 - 736,176
VOTING MACHINES - - 280,352 43,665 - 324,017
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 2,449,061 31,413,981 13,961,899 4,472,837 - 52,297,778
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT:
ADULT PROBATION $ - 810,068 12,145 481,588 - 1,303,801
BOOT CAMP - 5412 12,185 168,975 - 186,572
CONSTABLES - - 9,480 759,531 - 769,011
COUNTY COURTS - - - 121,869 - 121,869
COUNTY MORGUE - 618,056 - 100,387 - 718,443
COURT OF APPEALS - - - 18,875 - 18,875
COURT COORDINATOR - - - 25,162 - 25,162
CRIME LAB - - 3,925 348,147 - 352,072
CRIMINAL & DISTRICT COURTS - - - 380,477 - 380,477
DISPUTE RESOLUTION - - - 22,071 - 22,071
DISTRICT ATTORNEY - - 3,973 540,893 - 544,866
DISTRICT CLERK - - - 211,800 - 211,800
DRUG IMPACT COURT - - - 37,374 - 37,374
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE COURTS - 47,678 326 282,896 - 330,900
JUVENILE PROBATION & DETENTION 45,446 60,452 6,009 250,714 - 362,711
LAW LIBRARY - - - 8,800 - 8,800
PRESS ROOM - 4TH FLOOR - - - 1,550 - 1,550
PRE-TRIAL RELEASE - - - 19,955 - 19,955
SHERIFF & JAIL 1,739,593 18,037,205 297,327 3,792,644 - 23,866,769
TOTAL JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT  $ 1,785,039 19,578,871 345,460 7,573,708 - 29,283,078
ROAD AND BRIDGES:
PRECINCT OFFICES $ - - - 32,141 - 32,141
PRECINCT SERVICE CENTERS 326,973 169,855 252,007 7,044,701 12,338,600 20,132,136
PARKS & RECREATION 1,632,033 - 58,131 10,544 - 1,700,708
ROADS, BRIDGES & ROW - - - - 4,700,070 4,700,070
TOTAL ROAD AND BRIDGES $ 1,959,006 169,855 310,138 7,087,386 17,038,670 26,565,055

[CONTINUED)]



EXHIBIT H-2

PAGE 2 OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS- BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
IMPROVEMENTS PROPERTY ROADS,
OTHER THAN AND BRIDGESAND
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY LAND BUILDINGS BUILDINGS EQUIPMENT RIGHT-OF-WAY TOTAL
CHARITIES, HEALTH AND WELFARE:
AGRICULTURE $ - - - 105,545 - 105,545
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL - - - 89,348 - 89,348
CHILD WELFARE - - - 24,292 - 24,292
HEALTH & WELFARE | - - - 188,582 - 188,582
HEALTH & WELFARE I 14,000 238,582 10,640 150,023 - 413,245
MOSQUITO CONTROL - 610,261 36,932 496,291 - 1,143,484
NURSE PRACTIONER - - - 14,674 - 14,674
TOTAL CHARITIES, HEALTH AND WELFARE $ 14,000 848,843 47,572 1,068,755 - 1,979,170
COOPERATIVE WORK:
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT $ - 309 1,038 39,914 - 41,261
VETERANS SERVICES - - - 26,598 - 26,598
TOTAL COOPERATIVE WORK $ - 309 1,038 66,512 - 67,859
STATE/ FEDERAL GRANT:
STATE/FEDERAL GRANT $ - 14,009 128,330 2,228,960 21,775 2,393,074
TOTAL STATE/FEDERAL GRANT $ - 14,009 128,330 2,228,960 21,775 2,393,074
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETSALLOCATED
TO FUNCTIONS AND ACTIVITIES $ 6,207,106 52,025,868 14,794,437 22,498,158 17,060,445 112,586,014
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 9,370,247

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

121,956,261



EXHIBIT H-3

PAGE 10F 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGESIN FIXED ASSETS-BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 10/1/1999 ADDITIONS DELETIONS 9/30/2000
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
COUNTY AUDITOR $ 91,085 14,119 13,657 91,547
COUNTY CLERK 1,383,976 85,618 7,865 1,461,729
COUNTY ENGINEER 264,217 51,222 69,461 245,978
COUNTY JUDGE 52,516 4,199 1,754 54,961
COUNTY TREASURER 31,450 3,817 6,349 28,918
FEE COLLECTIONS - 4,337 - 4,337
GENERAL SERVICES 197,441 - - 197,441
HISTORICAL COMMISSION 15,124 401 690 14,835
HUMAN RESOURCES 29,772 3,039 4,860 27,951
LIBRARY 96,456 1,175 - 97,631
MAINTENANCE
BEAUMONT 42,271,905 290,838 3,783 42,558,960
MID-COUNTY 281,528 10,371 2,029 289,870
PORT ARTHUR 3,795,158 48,281 7,327 3,836,112
MIS- DATA PROCESSING 523,941 65,078 17,321 571,698
PRINTING 61,037 6,291 449 66,879
PURCHASING 92,494 7,538 3,939 96,093
RISK MANAGEMENT 5,886 25,764 - 31,650
SERVICE CENTER - BEAUMONT 1,545,484 15,511 - 1,560,995
TAX ASSESSOR/COLLECTOR 668,254 97,157 29,235 736,176
VOTING MACHINES 320,834 3,508 325 324,017
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 51,728,558 738,264 169,044 52,297,778
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT:
ADULT PROBATION $ 1,228,718 101,810 26,727 1,303,801
BOOT CAMP 186,572 - - 186,572
CONSTABLES 646,479 178,682 56,150 769,011
COUNTY COURTS 118,779 12,593 9,503 121,869
COUNTY MORGUE 96,709 621,734 - 718,443
COURT OF APPEALS 18,875 - - 18,875
COURT COORDINATOR 31,562 - 6,400 25,162
CRIMELAB 347,324 7,992 3,244 352,072
CRIMINAL & DISTRICT COURTS 376,054 21,339 16,916 380,477
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 18,770 4,701 1,400 22,071
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 529,721 59,175 44,030 544,866
DISTRICT CLERK 205,746 36,322 30,268 211,800
DRUG IMPACT COURT 40,108 - 2,734 37,374
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE COURTS 321,513 12,962 3,575 330,900
JUVENILE PROBATION & DETENTION 376,427 12,008 25,724 362,711
LAW LIBRARY 8,800 - - 8,800
PRESSROOM - 4TH FLOOR 1,550 - - 1,550
PRE-TRIAL RELEASE 19,565 3,190 2,800 19,955
SHERIFF & JAIL 23,454,201 605,822 193,254 23,866,769
TOTAL JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT ~ $ 28,027,473 1,678,330 422,725 29,283,078
ROAD AND BRIDGES:
PRECINCT OFFICES $ 36,694 1,042 5,595 32,141
PRECINCT SERVICE CENTERS 19,784,545 1,206,498 858,907 20,132,136
PARKS & RECREATION 1,675,472 25,236 - 1,700,708
ROADS, BRIDGES & ROW 4,612,132 87,938 - 4,700,070
TOTAL ROAD AND BRIDGES $ 26,108,843 1,320,714 864,502 26,565,055

[CONTINUED]



EXHIBIT H-3

PAGE 2OF 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGESIN FIXED ASSETS-BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 10/1/1999 ADDITIONS DELETIONS 9/30/2000
HEALTH AND WELFARE:
AGRICULTURE $ 100,755 8,197 3,407 105,545
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 96,199 1,124 7,975 89,348
CHILD WELFARE 23,766 645 119 24,292
HEALTH & WELFARE| 192,057 8,228 11,703 188,582
HEALTH & WELFAREII 424,864 1,934 13,553 413,245
MOSQUITO CONTROL 1,107,314 55,232 19,062 1,143,484
NURSE PRECTIONER - 14,674 - 14,674
TOTAL HEALTH AND WELFARE $ 1,944,955 90,034 55,819 1,979,170
COOPERATIVE WORK:
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT $ 58,398 1,966 19,103 41,261
VETERANS SERVICES 32,860 985 7,247 26,598
TOTAL COOPERATIVE WORK $ 91,258 2,951 26,350 67,859
STATE/ FEDERAL GRANT:
STATE/FEDERAL GRANT $ 2,003,768 397,652 8,346 2,393,074
TOTAL STATE/FEDERAL GRANT $ 2,003,768 397,652 8,346 2,393,074
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETSALLOCATED
TO FUNCTIONS AND ACTIVITIES $ 109,904,855 4,227,945 1,546,786 112,586,014
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS $ 2,779,441 7,600,729 1,009,923 9,370,247
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $_ 112,684,296 11,828,674 2,556,709 121,956,261
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ACCOUNT GROUP



GENERAL L ONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

Thisgroup of accountsisused to record and account for the general obligation bonded
debt, long-term leases and compensated absences liability of the County.



EXHIBIT I-1

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 1999

2000 1999
AMOUNT AVAILABLE AND TO BE
PROVIDED FOR PAYMENT OF
GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT
AMOUNT AVAILABLE IN DEBT SERVICE FUNDS $ 2,356,619 1,887,549
AMOUNT TO BE PROVIDED FOR:
RETIREMENT OF CAPITAL LEASES 831,697 1,143,050
RETIREMENT OF GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT
OTHER LIABILITIES 81,476,845 28,736,520
TOTAL AMOUNT AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVIDED $ 84,665,161 31,767,119
GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
COMPENSATED ABSENCES $ 7,448,464 6,569,069
CAPITAL LEASESPAYABLE 831,697 1,143,050
BONDS PAYABLE 76,385,000 24,055,000

TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS $ 84,665,161 31,767,119




EXHIBIT I-2

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGESIN GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

BALANCE BALANCE
10/1/99 ADDITIONS DELETIONS 9/30/00

COMPENSATED ABSENCES $ 6,569,069 1,295,670 416,275 7,448,464
CAPITAL LEASESPAYABLE 1,143,050 - 311,353 831,697
BONDS PAYABLE 24,055,000 55,000,000 2,670,000 76,385,000

TOTALS $ 31,767,119 56,295,670 3,397,628 84,665,161




STATISTICAL SECTION



TABLE1
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURESBY FUNCTION (a)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
JUDICIAL EDUCATION HEALTH
FISCAL GENERAL AND LAW AND AND CONTRACTUAL
YEAR GOVERNMENT  ENFORCEMENT  RECREATION WELFARE SERVICES
1991 $ 8845314 $ 23,899,926 $ 702,461 $ 5,305,567 $ 826,056
1992 9,386,550 26,793,040 631,726 6,605,550 1,175,166
1993 10,283,807 34,051,640 810,289 7,156,744 1,539,975
1994 11,181,815 38,362,335 955,341 7,231,696 1,400,338
1995 11,754,509 41,526,888 426,438 7,007,316 578,466
1996 9,250,555 41,474,153 489,097 6,529,535 365,688
1997 10,646,320 43,243,192 524,963 5,612,021 49,352
1998 10,229,806 44,081,194 486,719 5,150,674 30,180
1999 10,348,142 47,441,074 513,718 5,199,497 39,053
2000 11,626,757 49,543,078 516,098 6,180,430 9,684

General Gover nment Expenditures by Function

Health & Welfare Capital Outlay
6.7% 11.8%

Maintenance
10.4%
Debt Service Principal
2.9%
Education & Recreation
0.6%

Debt Service Interest
1.2%

Judicial & Law Enforcement

53.8% General Government

12.6%

(a) Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds.



TABLE1

PAGE 2 of 2
PARTICIPATION MAINTENANCE DEBT
WITH OTHER EQUIPMENT DEBT SERVICE
GOVERNMENTAL AND CAPITAL SERVICE INTEREST/ TOTAL
AGENCIES STRUCTURES OUTLAY PRINCIPAL COMMISSION EXPENDITURES
$ 32,000 $ 4,985,810 $ 5,268,321 $ 2,035,000 $ 1,598,719 $ 53,499,174
- 4,993,589 10,315,662 2,305,000 1,676,008 63,882,291
- 5,505,871 5,308,129 2,250,000 1,549,299 68,455,754
23,000 4,841,213 9,983,387 2,654,042 1,113,074 77,746,241
- 5,195,709 3,755,289 2,475,000 1,298,255 74,017,870
- 7,805,386 3,991,974 1,960,000 1,242,522 73,108,910
- 8,351,767 5,264,113 2,220,000 1,189,927 77,101,655
- 8,215,782 5,839,748 2,485,000 1,101,286 77,620,389
- 8,698,584 6,594,022 2,405,000 1,067,213 82,306,303
- 9,542,345 10,881,982 2,670,000 1,112,364 92,082,738
General Government ExpendituresLast Ten Fiscal Years
Millions
100
80F — — — 1
60- —_—
40
20

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000



TABLE 2

PAGE 1 of 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL REVENUESBY SOURCE (a)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

FINES SALES,

FISCAL PROPERTY SALESAND OFFICAL AND RENTALSAND
YEAR TAXES USE TAX FEES FORFEITURES SERVICES

1991 $ 24939711 $ 12080087 $ 7190974 $ 1418035 $ 316,553
1992 29,158,720 13,155,520 8,105,027 1,760,585 94,033
1993 30,540,252 12,734,254 13,777,264 2,315,753 306,996
1994 30,552,260 13,114,976 16,573,764 1,873,298 275,903
1995 32,377,831 13,389,266 12,948,940 2,126,374 258,202
1996 37,703,857 13,148,044 10,851,762 1,322,376 553,732
1997 38,879,048 12,622,841 9,575,098 1,963,894 1,825,690
1998 39,950,551 15,247,440 10,262,716 2,334,443 1,909,543
1999 42,347,242 13,502,676 10,679,407 2,922,403 7,563,814
2000 42,624,272 13,860,790 10,731,563 3,365,240 4,727,874

General Revenues by Source

Sales Taxes
15.4%

Fines & Forfeitures
3.7%

Official Fees
11.9%

Property Taxes
47.4% Sales, Rentals & Services

5.3%

Grants & Intergovernmental

9.3%
Licenses

0.5%

Other

0.7% Interest

5.8%
(8) Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds.



TABLE 2

PAGE 2 of 2
GRANTS AND
REPAYMENTS RECEIPTS INTEREST
AND FROM OTHER ON OTHER TOTAL
REFUNDS GOVERNMENTS INVESTMENTS LICENSES REVENUES REVENUES
$ 462,938 $ 5,377,573 $ 2,612,003 $ 412,344 $ 44,734 $ 54,854,952
545,142 8,883,483 1,446,904 96,903 693,680 63,939,997
36,146 8,985,651 894,066 401,240 23,727 70,015,349
- 10,096,303 1,426,883 451,223 400,140 74,764,750
15,093 8,886,600 2,060,575 479,260 220,737 72,762,878
443 8,241,356 2,339,855 506,414 551,513 75,219,352
16,057 7,382,249 2,288,536 447,001 517,853 75,518,267
29,933 7,969,156 2,469,724 473,567 354,407 81,001,480
21,229 8,408,841 2,638,316 450,865 721,015 89,255,808
13,792 8,378,371 5,183,310 487,024 656,689 90,028,925
General RevenuesLast Ten Fiscal Years
Millions
100
80 _ (1

60

40

20

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 7
1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIESAND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 3

(Unaudited)
DELINQUENT RATIO DELINQUENT
FISCAL AD VALOREM CURRENT TAX PERCENTAGE TAX TOTAL COLLECTIONS TAXES RECEIVABLE (c)
YEAR TAX LEVY COLLECTIONS OF LEVY COLLECTIONS TAX TO CURRENT PERSONAL REAL
ENDED OCTOBER 1 @ COLLECTED (b) COLLECTIONS TAX LEVY PROPERTY PROPERTY
1991 $25769,888 $ 25,252,926 97.99% $ 414,498  $ 25,667,424 99.60% $662,816 $1,717,615
1992 30,124,005 29,491,505 97.90% 311,510 29,803,015 98.93% 820,853 1,841,340
1993 30,911,951 30,176,334 97.62% 262,886 30,439,220 98.47% 904,058 2,143,915
1994 31,330,904 30,606,048 97.69% 321,478 30,927,526 98.71% 893,851 2,419,040
1995 32,854,258 32,197,200 98.00% 370,326 32,567,526 99.13% 850,476 2,602,595
1996 37,684,064 37,006,664 98.20% 656,942 37,663,606 99.95% 829,927 2,470,587
1997 38,690,064 37,691,228 97.42% 353,536 38,044,764 98.33% 913,773 2,895,521
1998 39,702,445 39,100,364 98.48% 802,333 39,902,697  10050% 902,166 2,590,099
1999 42,022,635 41,426,352 98.58% 487,145 41,913,497 99.74% 942,589 2,599,166
2000 41,752,443 41,099,423 98.44% 637,887 41,737,310 99.96% 847,217 2,530,086

Property Tax Leviesand Collections

Millions

50+

40 —

204

0 T T T T T T T T T

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

OTax Levy @ Tota Collections I

@

(b)

(©

Taxeslevied in any year which are collected commencing October 1 of such year through September 30 of the following year
are shown as current collections. Such amounts include collections of the current levy after February 1, which is the date taxes
become legally delinquent.

Non-current collections of property taxes during the period beginning on October 1 of the year indicated and ending
September 30 of the following year are shown as delinquent collections.

The accumulation of all unpaid ad valorem taxes at the end of the collection period on October 1 of the year indicated and
ending September 30, of the following year, is shown as delinquent taxes receivable.



TABLE 4

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN TAX YEARS
(Unaudited)
ASSESSED VALUE
REAL ESTIMATED

TAX REAL LESS (a) PROPERTY PERSONAL ASSESSMENT ACTUAL
YEAR _ PROPERTY EXEMPTIONS (NET) PROPERTY TOTAL (b) RATIO VALUE

1991 $8,195619,857 $921,866,168 $ 7,273,753,689  $ 2,469,004,302  $ 9,742,757,991 100% $ 11,732,356,982

1992 9,014,138,680 1,827,005,830 7,187,132,850 2,403,334,000 9,590,466,850 100% 11,075,711,430

1993 9,674,283,760 2,264,030,584 7,410,253,176 2,325,784,960 9,736,038,136 100% 12,000,068,720

1994 9,873,231,860 2,358,578,278 7,514,653,582 2,169,594,586 9,684,248,168 100% 12,042,826,446

1995 10,273,009,120 2,329,299,106 7,943,710,014 2,244,296,720 10,188,006,734 100% 12,517,305,840

1996 10,224,058,800 2,078,894,772 8,145,164,028 2,388,550,990 10,533,715,018 100% 12,612,609,790
1997 10,283,130,071 1,822,642,260 8,460,487,811 2,451,323,011 10,911,810,822 100% 12,734,453,082
1998 10,500,099,232 1,442,037,494 9,058,061,738 2,470,696,101 11,528,757,839 100% 12,970,795,333
1999 11,568,619,310 2,417,269,942 9,151,349,368 2,313,195,563 11,464,544,931 100% 13,881,814,873
2000 12,041,159,841 824,849,700 11,216,310,141 2,511,856,478 13,728,166,619 100% 14,553,016,319

(@) Exemptions are evenly divided between regular homesteads, and homestead property of
persons 65 years of age or older.
(b)  Net of exemptions.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

PROPERTY TAX RATES (per $100 valuation)
DIRECT AND ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

PURPOSE

LAST TEN TAX YEARS

TABLES
PAGE 1 of 2

COUNTY-WIDE TAXING JURISDICTION:

JEFFERSON COUNTY

CITIES:
BEAUMONT
GROVES
NEDERLAND
PORT ARTHUR
PORT NECHES
SCHOOL DISTRICTS:
BEAUMONT
HAMSHIRE FANNETT
HARDIN JEFFERSON
NEDERLAND
PORT ARTHUR
PORT NECHES
SABINE PASS
PORT DISTRICTS:
BEAUMONT
PORT ARTHUR
SABINE PASS
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS:
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS#3
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS #6
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS #7
NAVIGATION DISTRICTS:
JEFFERSON COUNTY
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS:
BEVIL OAKS
NORTHWEST FOREST
WATER DISTRICTS:
WATER DISTRICT #10
FIRE DISTRICTS:
RURAL FIRE#1
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICTS:
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT #1
CONSERVATION DISTRICTS:
TRINITY BAY
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT:
CARDINAL MEADOWS

(Unaudited)

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
0.365000  0.365000 0.365000 0.365000 0.370000
0.635000  0.635000 0.635000 0.615000 0.615000
0.748000  0.748000 0.748000 0.718000 0.700000
0.650000  0.650000 0.700000 0.700000 0.700000
0.775000  0.775000 0.775000 0.775000 0.775000
0.660000  0.660000 0.660000 0.689000 0.689000
1.520000  1.500000 1.500000 1.480000 1.440000
1550000  1.540000 1.714241 1.480000 1.490000
1.486500  1.533000 1.485000 1.430000 1.620000
1540000  1.510000 1.510000 1.470436 1.430000
1.500000  1.500000 1.489000 1.489000 1.489000
1.684053 1703027  1.734542  1.667155  1.544297
1.680000  1.645000 1.500000 1.500000 1.500000
0.098750  0.081382 0.082435 0.088382 0.073970
0.138556  0.146490 0.139785 0.158451 0.153870
0.270458  0.280136 0.239110 0.122124 0.151591
0.307738  0.375863 0.432500 0.443544 0.448014
0.200039  0.200039 0.200039 0.200039 0.200039
0.170500  0.170500 0.172102 0.172102 0.172102
0.023023  0.017808 0.018000 0.019468 0.019468
0.306541  0.323262 0.342720 0.356171 0.404123
0.755752  0.761977 0.837500 0.850000 0.979574
0.307688  0.369312 0.408747 0.428613 0.463235
0.030018  0.028888 0.030000 0.029204 0.029260
0.058574  0.061958 0.063775 0.062538 0.066265
0.518190  0.503920 0.503920 0.503920 0.521240
0.332707  0.339887 0.338402 0.395117 0.392988



TABLES

PAGE 2 of 2
1995 1994 1993 1992 1991
0.370000 0.340000 0.320000 0.323000 0.309000
0.615000 0.615000 0.615000 0.620000 0.590000
0.710000 0.712000 0.712000 0.722000 0.665000
0.700000 0.700000 0.700000 0.700000 0.700000
0.775000 0.775000 0.775000 0.775000 0.785000
0.689000 0.750000 0.750000 0.750000 0.750000
1.417600 1.385000 1.351000 0.456000 0.378000
1.490000 1.490000 1.490000 0.598360 0.620000
1.480000 1.480000 1.430000 1.350000 1.350000
1.450000 1.450000 1.450000 0.540000 0.570000
1.489000 1.460000 1.420000 0.540000 0.540000
1.370000 1.400000 1.400000 0.480000 0.480000
1.500000 1.545000 1.450000 0.410000 0.400000
0.073970 0.074963 0.073550 0.065640 0.049720
0.163211 0.169288 0.054840 0.054470 0.495800
0.127832 0.110924 0.089670 0.076360 0.119170
0.439461 0.425000 0.039943 0.379630 0.431450
0.196898 0.171780 0.164680 0.168920 0.188920
0.174452 0.179697 0.159500 0.159500 0.150000
0.019000 0.012450 0.011990 0.012000 0.007000
0.460865 0.348875 0.352220 0.383560 0.366390
1.139085 0.971805 0.978390 1.030000 0.970000
0.424528 0.434411 0.383980 0.388400 0.431400
0.029260 0.029260 0.029260 0.030000 0.030000
0.076619 0.065021 0.063570 0.070000 0.000000
0.461600 0.419500 0.442000 0.410000 0.358800
0.428936 0.417647 0.416330 0.433630 0.410000



TABLEG6

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(Unaudited)

Assessed Value of Real Property $12,041,159,841

Assessed Value of All Taxable Property $14,553,016,318

Bonds |Issued Under Articlelll,
Section 52 of the Texas Constitution:

The County is authorized under Article I11, Section 52 of the State Constitution to issue
bonds payable from ad valorem taxes for the construction and maintenance of roads.
There is no congtitutional or statutory limit asto the rate on bonds issued pursuant to
such constitutional provision. However, the amount of bonds which may beissued is
limited to 25% of the assessed valuation of real property in the County.

Debt Limit, 25% of Real Property Assessed Vaue $3,010,289,960
Amount of Debt Applicable to Constitutional
Debt Limit:
Total Bonded Applicable Debt $76,385,000
Less Amount Availabe in Debt Service Fund 2,356,619 74,028,381

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN, BONDS ISSUED
UNDER ARTICLE I1l, SECTION 52
OF THE TEXAS CONSTITUTION $2,936,261,579

Bonds I ssued Under Article V111, Section 9:

In addition to unlimited tax bonds, the County may issue statutorially authorized bonds
payable from the proceeds of alimited ad valorem tax provided for in Article VI, Section 9
of the State Constitution. Such constitutional provision provides that a county islimited to
an ad valorem tax rate of $.80 per $100 of assessed valuation for general fund, permanent
improvement fund, road and bridge fund, and jury fund purposes.

Certain of the County's bonds payable from such limited tax may be issued under the
provisions of Chapter 2, Title 22, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes. The principal amount of
all bonds which may be issued under the provision of such Chapter islimited in the
aggregate to 5% of the assessed valuation. The debt limit under Chapter 2, Tittle 22 is
approximately $727,650,816 compared to applicable bonds outstanding at September 30,
2000 of $76,385,000.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO

ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE7

(Unaudited)
Ratio of
Net Bonded

Taxable Funded Debt Less Amount Net Debt to Net Bonded
Fiscal Estimated Assessed Outstanding at Availablein Bonded Assessed Debt Per
Y ear Population (a) Valuation End of Year (b) Debt Service Debt Vaue Capita
1991 239,397 9,399,693390 $ 26,655000 $ 663,675 25,991,325 028% $ 109
1992 239,397 9,593,466,850 24,350,000 992,008 23,357,992 0.24% 98
1993 239,397 9,736,038,136 22,100,000 800,477 21,299,523 0.22% 89
1994 239,397 9,684,248,168 27,550,000 1,343,774 26,206,226 0.27% 109
1995 239,397 10,544,711,730 25,075,000 1,265,514 23,809,486 0.23% 99
1996 239,397 10,310,184,489 25,165,000 1,600,651 23,564,349 0.23% 98
1997 239,397 10,915,966,140 22,945,000 1,625,341 21,319,659 0.20% 89
1998 239,397 11,525,176,229 20,460,000 1,940,029 18,519,971 0.16% e
1999 239,397 11,464,544,931 24,055,000 1,887,549 22,167,451 0.19% 93
2000 239,397 11,866,488,079 76,385,000 2,356,619 74,028,381 0.62% 309

(8 U.S. Census Bureau estimate.

(b) Includesall General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, and Long term Construction Notes which are supported
by property tax revenues.



TABLES8

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL
EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)
Ratio of
Debt Service Debt Service
Fisca Total Genera To Generdl
Year Principle Interest Debt Service Expenditures Expenditures
1991 $ 2,035,000 $ 1,598,719 $ 3,633,719 $ 53,499,174 6.79%
1992 2,305,000 1,676,008 3,981,008 63,882,291 6.23%
1993 2,250,000 1,549,299 3,799,299 68,455,754 5.55%
1994 2,654,042 1,113,074 3,767,116 77,746,241 4.85%
1995 2,475,000 1,298,255 3,773,255 74,017,870 5.10%
1996 1,960,000 1,242,522 3,202,522 73,108,910 4.38%
1997 2,220,000 1,186,050 3,406,050 77,101,655 4.42%
1998 2,485,000 1,097,308 3,582,308 77,620,389 4.62%
1999 2,405,000 1,062,311 3,467,311 82,336,303 4.21%

2000 2,670,000 1,107,602 3,777,602 92,082,738 4.10%



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

(Unaudited)

Net Outstanding

TABLE9

Debt Applicable%  Applicable Share of Debt
COUNTY-WIDE TAXING JURISDICTION:
JEFFERSON COUNTY $76,385,000 100.00% $76,385,000
Total Direct Debt $76,385,000
CITIES:
BEAUMONT 81,093,791 100.00% 81,093,791
GROVES 13,905,000 100.00% 13,905,000
NEDERLAND 20,465,000 100.00% 20,465,000
PORT ARTHUR 38,245,000 100.00% 38,245,000
PORT NECHES 18,640,000 100.00% 18,640,000
SCHOOL DISTRICTS:
BEAUMONT 71,990,000 100.00% 71,990,000
HAMSHIRE FANNETT 9,935,000 100.00% 9,935,000
HARDIN JEFFERSON 3,635,000 55.00% 1,999,250
NEDERLAND 17,555,000 100.00% 17,555,000
PORT ARTHUR - 100.00% -
PORT NECHES 36,900,000 100.00% 36,900,000
SABINE PASS 10,000,000 100.00% 10,000,000
PORT DISTRICTS:
BEAUMONT 36,624,995 100.00% 36,624,995
PORT ARTHUR 32,215,000 100.00% 32,215,000
SABINE PASS 1,549,139 100.00% 1,549,139
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS:
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS#3 - 100.00% -
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS#6 1,490,000 100.00% 1,490,000
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS#7 - 100.00% -
NAVIGATION DISTRICTS:
JEFFERSON COUNTY - 100.00% -
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS:
BEVIL OAKS 232,640 100.00% 232,640
NORTHWEST FOREST 655,000 100.00% 655,000
PARK CENTRAL 11,129,507 100.00% 11,129,507
WATER DISTRICTS:
WATER DISTRICT #10 4,655,000 100.00% 4,655,000
FIRE DISTRICTS:
RURAL FIRE #1 - 100.00% -
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICTS:
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT #1 - 100.00% -
CONSERVATION DISTRICTS:
TRINITY BAY 2,155,000 100.00% 2,155,000
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT:
CARDINAL MEADOWS 52,888 100.00% 52,888
Total Overlapping Debt 411,487,210

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

$487,872,210




TABLE 10

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS
(Unaudited)

EMPLOYMENT STATISTICS

Civilian
Labor Total Total Percent

Fiscal Y ear Force Employment Unemployment Unemployment
1991 118,166 110,241 7,925 6.7%
1992 121,262 110,559 10,703 8.8%
1993 120,862 108,304 12,558 10.4%
1994 119,328 107,900 11,428 9.6%
1995 118,929 108,026 10,903 9.2%
1996 116,281 106,190 10,091 8.7%
1997 116,262 107,549 8,713 7.5%
1998 116,950 108,982 7,968 6.8%
1999 116,881 107,373 9,508 8.1%
2000(a) 114,868 105,486 9,382 8.2%

POPULATION STATISTICS
Beaumont,
City of City of Pt. Arthur,
Year (b) County Beaumont Pt. Arthur Orange MSA

1960 245,659 119,175 66,676 306,016

1970 246,402 117,548 57,371 347,568

1980 250,938 118,102 61,195 375,497

1990 239,397 114,323 58,724 361,226

(a) Average through end of September, 2000. Labor Market Statistics - TWC.
(b) U.S. Census estimates.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

PROPERTY VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION

LAST TEN TAX YEARS

TABLE 11

(Unaudited)
PROPERTY VALUE (a)
MARKET VALUE ESTIMATED
TAX TAXABLE ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION (c)

YEAR PROPERTY  EXEMPTIONS (b) VALUE COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL _ TOTAL
1991 12,654,223,150  $ 921,866,168  $ 11,732,356,982 (d) (d) -
1992 12,902,717,260 1,827,005,830 11,075,711,430 (d) (d) -
1993 14,264,099,304 2,264,030,584 12,000,068,720 (d) (d) -
1994 14,401,404,724 2,358,578,278 12,042,826,446 (d) (d) -
1995 14,846,604,946  2,329,299,106 12,517,305,840 (d) (d) -
1996 14,691,504,562 2,078,894,772 12,612,609,790 $71,031,491  $27,971,959 $99,003,450
1997 14,557,095,342 1,822,642,260 12,734,453,082 87,731,204 48,236,969 135,968,173
1998 14,412,832,827 1,442,037,494 12,970,795,333 68,450,070 53,510,726 121,960,796
1999 16,299,084,815 2,417,269,942 13,881,814,873 141,727,689 65,338,286 207,065,975
2000 17,239,544,557 2,686,528,239 14,553,016,318 79,227,703 71,689,240 150,916,943

@
(b)

©
(d)

The property value used is the certified appraised value from the Jefferson County Appraisal District.
Exemptions are evenly divided between regular homesteads, and homestead property of
persons 65 years of age or older.
Jefferson County estimate.
Information not available.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
OCTOBER 1, 2000 (a)

TABLE 12

(Unaudited)
PERCENTAGE
2000 OF TOTAL
ASSESSED ASSESSED
TAXPAYERS VALUATIONS (b) VALUATION

MOBIL OIL CORPORATION $1,523,461,310 12.84%
HUNTSMAN PETROCHEMICAL CORP. 1,006,080,540 8.48%
MOTIVA REFINERY 654,620,230 5.52%
CHEVRON USA INC. 418,425,950 3.53%
AMERICAN PETROFINA MKT INC. 338,915,890 2.86%
PREMCOR REFINING GROUP INC. 322,880,660 2.72%
E | DUPONT DE NEMOURS 204,829,010 1.73%
GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER CO. 204,489,360 1.72%
GULF STATESUTILITIES CO. 169,467,320 1.43%
BEAUMONT METHANOL LIMITED 126,990,110 1.07%
AIR LIQUIDE AMERICAN CORP. 115,564,550 0.97%
SOUTHWESTERN BELL 114,436,920 0.96%
BASF CORPORATION 114,091,470 0.96%
EQUISTAR CHEMICALSLP 107,400,750 0.91%
CENTANA ENERGY MARKETING CO. 95,070,820 0.80%
INEOS 90,167,100 0.76%
ATOFINA CHEMICALSINC 81,147,660 0.68%
SUN MARINE TERMINALS INC. 73,896,050 0.62%
AMERIPOL SYNPOL CORPORATION 49,097,870 0.41%
PRAXAIRINC 39,855,640 0.34%

TOTAL $5,850,889,210 49.31%

(@ Taxroall for fiscal year 2000

(b) Amounts shown for these taxpayers do not include assessed valuations attributable
to certain subsidiaries and affiliates which are not grouped on the tax roll with the

taxpayers shown.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEQOUS STATISTICS (a)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

(Unaudited)

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Outstanding Debt

$55,000,000 Certificates of Obligation, Series 2000

TABLE 13

Fiscal
Year Total % of
Ended Outstanding Principal
9/30 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Debt Retired
2001 2,010,000 959,333 2,969,333 - 4,942,013 4,942,013 7,911,346
2002 2,105,000 877,508 2,982,508 - 3,294,675 3,294,675 6,277,183
2003 2,190,000 790,251 2,980,251 - 3,294,675 3,294,675 6,274,926 8.25%
2004 2,275,000 697,226 2,972,226 - 3,294,675 3,294,675 6,266,901
2005 2,370,000 599,138 2,969,138 - 3,294,675 3,294,675 6,263,813
2006 2,485,000 494,498 2,979,498 - 3,294,675 3,294,675 6,274,173
2007 2,605,000 383,585 2,988,585 - 3,294,675 3,294,675 6,283,260 21.00%
2008 1,705,000 265,545 1,970,545 350,000 3,294,675 3,644,675 5,615,220
2009 1,780,000 182,000 1,962,000 400,000 3,276,300 3,676,300 5,638,300
2010 1,860,000 93,000 1,953,000 400,000 3,254,900 3,654,900 5,607,900
2011 - - - 2,325,000 3,233,300 5,558,300 5,558,300
2011-2025 - - - 51,525,000 26,149,188 77,674,188 77,674,188 100.00%
$21,385,000 $5,342,084 $26,727,084 $55,000,000 $63,918,426 $118,918,426 $145,645,510
Average (2001/2025) $5,825,820
Maximum $7,911,346
TAX DEBT OUTSTANDING
Debt Outstanding
Refunding Bonds, Series 1993 9,685,000
Certificates of Obligation, Series 1993 5,700,000
Certificates of Obligation, Series 1999 6,000,000
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2000 55,000,000
$76,385,000

AUTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED DEBT

The County has no authorized but unissued bonds.

(a8 Annual financial disclosure in compliance with the Securities Exchange Commission's Rule 15¢2-12.



TABLE 14

PAGE 1 of 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUSSTATISTICS (a)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(Unaudited)
TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUATION BY CATEGORY (b)
Tax Year 2000 Tax Year 1999 Tax Year 1998
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Real Property

Single Family $3,999,069,829 29.53% $3,896,472,948 30.13% $3,598,257,065 27.74%

Multifamily 243,916,706 1.80% 216,391,630 1.67% 216,916,690 1.67%

Vacant Lots/Tracts 129,095,323 0.95% 132,587,713 1.03% 133,103,063 1.03%

Acresge 146,953,525 1.08% 150,330,183 1.16% 149,924,931 1.16%

Farm & Ranch 56,192,160 0.41% 53,026,890 0.41% 50,181,220 0.39%
Improvements

Commercia 1,050,438,014 7.76% 1,027,128,602 7.94% 1,017,963,004 7.85%

Industrial 5,185,387,860 38.28% 4,960,200,570 38.35% 5,018,535,020 38.70%

Oil/Gas/Minerals 160,107,180 1.18% 113,830,640 0.88% 238,917,570 1.84%
Personal Property

Utilities 539,177,540 3.98% 519,675,680 4.02% 546,070,220 4.21%

Commercial 819,536,498 6.05% 786,845,863 6.08% 737,972,643 5.69%

Industrial 1,195,980,600 8.83% 1,063,416,710 8.22% 1,212,597,568 9.35%

Other Personal 18,779,490 0.14% 14,261,270 0.11% 48,997,590 0.38%
Total Appraised $13,544,634,725 100.00% $12,934,168,699 100.00% $12,969,436,584 100.00%
Less: Deductions 1,678,146,646 1,469,623,768 1,444,260,355
Net Taxable Value $11,866,488,079 $11,464,544,931 $11,525,176,229

(8 Annual financia disclosure in compliance with the Securities Exchange Commission's Rule 15¢2-12.
(b) Vauations and deductions shown above do not reflect continuing adjustments to the tax base and such figures may differ from those presented
elsewhere herein.



Tax Year 1997 Tax Year 1996
Amount Percent Amount Percent

$3,543,861,610 27.83% $3,493,669,690 27.70%
218,527,700 1.72% 213,981,980 1.70%
131,514,110 1.03% 132,984,770 1.05%
158,732,800 1.25% 163,363,600 1.30%
47,701,000 0.37% 44,802,990 0.36%
985,487,400 7.74% 973,363,140 7.72%
4,893,121,751 38.42% 5,008,190,810 39.71%
229,385,590 1.80% 111,464,410 0.88%
510,028,870 4.01% 519,455,160 4.12%
715,792,208 5.62% 699,556,580 5.55%
1,268,701,483 9.96% 1,220,195,380 9.67%
31,624,560 0.25% 31,581,280 0.25%
$12,734,479,082 100.00% $12,612,609,790 100.00%

1,818,512,942 2,302,425,301

$10,915,966,140 $10,310,184,489

TABLE 14
PAGE 2 of 2



TABLE 15

PAGE 1 of 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUSSTATISTICS (a)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(Unaudited)
INCOME DISTRIBUTION AND EFFECTIVE BUYING INCOME (b)
1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
Retail Sales by Store Group (000's)
Building Materials & Garden Supplies $201,216 $194,050 $181,757 $167,231 $151,555
General Merchandise Stores 444572 434,116 414,655 402,966 370,061
Food Stores 421,318 412,126 404,758 398,401 419,274
Automotive Dealers & Service Stations 519,355 478,862 457,127 415,859 389,856
Apparel and Accessory Stores 112,186 112,174 105,471 99,271 102,308
Furniture and Home Furnishing Stores 210,107 203,415 189,220 192,619 185,480
Eating and Drinking Establishments 266,883 260,074 247,984 238,442 220,730
Miscellaneous Retail 462,538 405,692 372,046 362,614 350,123
Effective Buying Income (EBI) (000's)

Total EBI (c) (c) (c) (c) 3,322,295
Median Househol ds EBI (c) (c) (c) (c) 28,164
Percent of Households EBI

$10,000-$19,999 (© (© (© (© 37.0%

$20,000-$34,999 (© (c) (© (© 22.0%

$35,000-$49,999 (© (© (© (© 17.0%

$50,000 and Over (© (©) (© (©) 24.0%

(@ Annual financia disclosure in compliance with the Securities Exchange Commission's Rule 15¢2-12.
(b) State of Texas Comptroller's Office.
(c) Information no longer available.



TABLE 15
PAGE 2 of 2

1994 1993 1992 1991 1990

$143,822 $140,365 $142,412 $132,324 $138,640

341,725 322,684 305,832 286,650 275,183
421,472 403,820 407,761 389,721 391,951
350,033 313,524 337,278 364,207 402,400
105,874 107,439 108,761 104,078 100,342
173,482 146,214 129,741 124,808 117,442
233,642 230,813 238,408 205,110 195,058
354,617 308,686 295,686 320,510 287,873

3,634,096 3504016 3,256,175 © ©

31,426 30,104 28,435 © ©
16.9% 17.4% 18.3% © ©
20.9% 21.4% 22.4% © ©
17.0% 17.5% 17.9% © ©

28.4% 26.2% 23.0% © ©



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS (a)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

(Unaudited)

MAJOR EMPLOYERSCITY AND METRO AREA (b)

TABLE 16

Company Industry Employees
Beaumont |SD School District 2,923
Saint Elizabeth Hospital Hospital 2,500
McDonald's Restaurants Restaurants 2,200
Market Basket Food Stores Grocery Stores 2,000
DuPont de Nemours-Sabine River Works Petrochemical mfg. 1,702
Bayer Corporation Synthetic Rubber Mfg. 1,600
Huntsman Petrochemical mfg. 1,535
Lamar University University 1,500
TDI-Halter, LP Offshore Drill Rigs 1,500
Texas Department of Criminal Justice Prison 1,406
City of Beaumont City Government 1,300
Mobil Oil Corporation Qil refinery 1,250
County of Jefferson County Government 1,150
Memorial Hermann Baptist Hospital Hospital 1,150
Motiva Enterprises Oil refinery 1,000
Petrocon Engineering Engineering 1,000
Inland Eastex Paperboard 997
Temple Inland Paper mill 995
Federal Bureau of Prisons Prison 928
Premcor Refining Group Inc. QOil refinery 822
Triple S Industrial Industrial Construction 800
Ameripol Synpol Synthetic Rubber Mfg. 756

Major Employers by Industy

Offshore Drill Rigs
4.8%

Rubber Mfg.
7.6%

Construction
2.6%

County & City Gov.
7.9%

Oil refinery
9.9%

Schools & University

Paper mill

Petrochemical mfg.
10.4%

Grocery Stores ~ Engineering
6.5% 3.2%

Prisons
7.5%

Hospital
11.8%
Restaurants
7.1%

(& Annual financial disclosurein compliance with the Securities Exchange

Commission's Rule 15¢2-12.
(b) Beaumont Chamber of Commerce.




TABLE 17

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOQUS STATISTICS (a)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000
(Unaudited)

TAX RATE DISTRIBUTION

Tax Year

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

Operations $0.2721 $0.2927 $0.2832 $0.3034 $0.3373 $0.3373 $0.3311 $0.3364 $0.3318 $0.3116
Debt 0.0369 0.0303 0.0368 0.0366  0.0327  0.0327  0.0339 0.0286 0.0332 0.0534

Totals $0.3090 $0.3230 $0.3200 $0.3400 $0.3700 $0.3700 $0.3650  $0.3650  $0.3650 $0.3650

Tax Rate Last Ten Years

I
0.3650
035 $0.3700 B0-3700  [0.3650 $0.3650 $0.3650
- [0.3400
0.30 K50.3090 0.3230$0-3200
0.25
20 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

(@ Annual financial disclosure in compliance with the Securities Exchange Commission's Rule 15¢2-12.



